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14 SCOB [2020] AD  

 

APPELLATE DIVISION 

 

PRESENT 

Mr. Justice Syed Mahmud Hossain, Chief Justice 

Mr. Justice Hasan Foez Siddique 

Ms. Justice Zinat Ara 

Mr. Justice Md. Nuruzzaman 

 

CIVIL APPEAL NOs.31-32 OF 2017 

With 

CIVIL APPEAL NO.30 OF 2017  

And 

CIVIL PETITION NO.4232 OF 2018 

 

(From the common Judgment and Order dated 24
th

 August, 2015 passed by the High Court 

Division in F.A. No.167 of 2010 and T.A. Nos.7-11 of 2014.) 

Noor Mohammad Khan being dead his heirs: 

 

Firoza Noor Khan and others……Appellants 

    (In C.A. No.31-32 of 2017) 

Jamila Khatun…………………………………………Appellant 

    (In C.A. No.30 of 2017) 

Jamila Khatun and another………….Petitioners 

    (In C.P. No.4232 of 2018) 

-Versus- 

Raisa Aziz Begum and others……Respondents 

    (In C.A. No.31 of 2017) 

Khadija Islam and others……Respondents 

    (In C.A. No.32 of 2017) 

Haji Md. Sujauddin and others……Respondents 

    (In C.A. No.30 of 2017)   

Raisa Aziz Begum and others……Respondents 

    (In C.P. No.4232 of 2018) 

  

For the appellant : Mr.Nozrul Islam Chowdhury, 

(In C.A.No.31/17)    Senior Advocate, instructed by 

Mr. Zainul Abedin,  

Advocate-on-record 

 

For the appellant : Mr. Khair Azaz Maswood, 

(In C.A.No.32/17)    Advocate, instructed by  

Mr. Zainul Abedin,  

Advocate-on-record 

 

For the appellant : Mr. Farooque Ahmed, 

(In C.A.No.30/17)    Advocate, instructed by  

Mr. Serajur Rahman,  

Advocate-on-record 
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For the petitioner : Mr. Farooque Ahmed, 

(In C.P.No.4232/18)    Advocate, instructed by  

  Mr. Sirajur Rahman,  

Advocate-on-record 

 

For the Respondents : Mr. A.M. Aminuddin, 

(In C.A.Nos.31-32/17 & 

30/17)  

Senior Advocate, instructed by  

Ms. Madhumaloti Chowdhury Barua,  

Advocate-on-record 

 

For the Respondent : Not represented 

(In C.P.No.4232/18)  

For the Government (In all 

the appeals) 

: Mr. Murad Reza, 

 Additional Attorney General, with Mr. Sk. 

Saifuzzaman,Deputy Attorney General (appeared with 

the leave of the Court) 

 

Date of Hearing: 08.01.2019, 09.01.2019, 15.01.2019, 20.02.2019, 24.04.2019 & 30.04.2019 

And  

Judgment on: The 14
th

 May, 2019. 

 

Khas Mohal property of the Government, Article 104 of the Constitution, Complete 

Justice; 

 

Any property owned by the Government is the property of the People’s of the Republic 

of Bangladesh and the citizens of this country are the actual owners of such property. 

Therefore, no one can dispose of valuable Government properties at his/their sweet will 

to anyone else unlawfully.                  ... (para 65) 

 

The power of this Court under article 104 of the Constitution is an extensive one though 

it is not used often or randomly. It is generally used for doing complete justice in any 

cause or matter pending before it in rare occasions in exceptional or extra-Ordinary 

cases for avoiding miscarriage of justice. To meet unwarranted and unpredicted 

exceptional situation this power is vested in this Division for doing complete justice. 

Article 104 widens our hands so that this Division is not powerless in exceptional 

matters.                  ... (para 114) 

 

J U D G M E N T 

 

Zinat Ara, J:  

 

1. Civil Appeal Nos.30-32 of 2017 and Civil Petition for Leave to Appeal No.4232 of 

2018 have arisen out of the common judgment and decree/Order dated 24
th

 August, 2015 

passed by the High Court Division in First Appeal No.167 of 2010, heard analogously with 

Transfer Appeal Nos.7, 8, 9, 10 & 11 of 2014 disallowing First Appeal No. 167 of 2010, 

Transfer Appeal Nos.07 of 2014, 09 of 2014, 10 of 2014 and 11 of 2014 and thereby, 

affirming the judgment and decree dated 18.08.2009 of the 1
st
 Court of Subordinate Judge, 

Dhaka (shortly, the trial court) in Title Suit Nos. 483 of 1974, 112 of 1984, 113 of 1984 and 

66 of 1990 dismissing the aforesaid suits but allowing Transfer Appeal No.08 of 2014  and 
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decreeing Title Suit No.224 of 1997, thereby reversing the judgment and decree dated 

18.08.2009 of the 1
st
 Court of Joint District Judge, Dhaka in Title Suit No.224 of 1997. 

 

2. The aforesaid Civil Appeals and Civil Petition for Leave to Appeal have arisen out of 

the common judgment and decree of the High Court Division in First Appeal (FA) No.167 of 

2010 with Transfer Appeal(TA) Nos.7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 of 2014 and the aforesaid first and 

transfer appealsarose out of the common judgment and decree dated 18.08.2009 of the trial 

court in the above mentioned suits and the parties are all claiming the same property in the 

aforesaid appeals/suits and the present civil appeals and the civil petition. Therefore, the Civil 

Appeal Nos.30-32 of 2017 and Civil Petition No.4232 of 2018 have been heard together and 

are being disposed of by this common judgment. 

 

Jamila Khatun’s case in  

Title Suit (TS) Nos.483 of 1974  

as Plaintiff and as defendants of other suits 

 

3. Plaintiff-appellant-Jamila Khatun (briefly, Jamila) on 27.09.1974 filed Title Suit 

No.483 of 1974 in the 1
st
 Court of Subordinate Judge, Dhaka(the trial court)against Raisa 

Aziz Begum (shortly, Raisa) and others for specific performance of contract and also for 

some other reliefs stating, inter alia, that Raisa, defendant No.1 of the suit had entered into an 

agreement with plaintiff-Jamila on 20.01.1972 to transfer 29.36 decimals of land with 

buildings, structures and shop rooms standing thereon of Holding No.10, Purana Paltan, 

Dhaka, present Plot No.1184, Khatian No.217 of Mouza-Ramna beingold Dag Nos.26, 27 

and 28, Ward No.3, Sheet No.22 of Mouza-Sahar Dhaka, (hereinafter referred to as the suit 

property). The price of the suit property was fixed at Rs.1,10,000/- and Raisa received a sum 

of Rs.3,000/- as earnest money on the terms and conditions that Raisa would obtain necessary 

clearance certificates and complete all other formalities within six months and intimate the 

same to Jamila and Jamila, within three months of such intimation would pay the balance 

consideration amount of Rs.1,07,000/- to Raisa and then Raisa would execute and register a 

saledeed in favour of Jamila. Subsequently, Raisa received Tk.92,000/- from Jamila on 

different occasions between 15.03.1972 to 19.08.1974 and Raisa admitted/acknowledged 

about receiving of the said amountthrough some money receipts. Thus, Tk.15,000/- remained 

outstanding out of the total consideration money. Raisa did not execute the sale deed on 

receiving the balance amount. Therefore, Jamila filed TS No.483 of 1974. 

 

Initial result of the Suit & 

subsequent events, etc. 
 

4. The suit was decreed ex-parte on 18.07.1978 against Raisa. So, plaintiff Jamila 

deposited the balance consideration of Tk.15,000/- through Chalan No.561 dated 13.07.1978. 

Subsequently, Raisa filed Miscellaneous Case No.34 of 1979 to set-aside the ex-parte 

judgment and decree. Whereupon, the learned judge of the trial court by order dated 

24.03.1980 allowed the saidmiscellaneous case, set asidethe ex-parte judgment and decree 

and restored the suit to its original file and number. 

 

5. Jamila thereafter amended the plaint of the suit alleging that after filing of the suit by 

Jamila, defendant Nos.3-7 knowing fully well about the agreement between Raisa and Jamila 

created some forged and fraudulent documents including sale deed and they were engaged in 

a conspiracy to deprive Jamila from the suit property. 
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Jamila Khatun’s Case in TS No.66 of 1990 

as plaintiff and as defendants of other suits 
 

6. Plaintiff-Jamila of TS No.483 of 1974 filed another suit being TS No.66 of 1990 for 

cancellation of sale deed as well as lease deed in favour of Khadiza Islam (briefly stated as 

Khadiza), contending, inter alia, that Raisa did not sale/transfer the suit property to Syed 

Badiur Rahman (briefly, Badiur) as claimed by him inasmuch as Badiur negotiated the Baina 

agreement dated 20.01.1972 between Jamila and Raisa and so, the alleged sale deed in favour 

of Badiur is forged. Khadiza purchased the suit property from Badiur knowing about her 

agreement for purchase the suit property from Raisa dated 20.01.1972 and also about the fact 

that the sale deed in favour of Badiur was/is forged. Khadiza created the sale deed in her 

favour knowing the aforesaid facts. Therefore, the deed of purchase as well as the deed of 

lease extension in her favour is liable to be cancelled. It was specifically alleged that there 

was no agreement of sale between Raisa and Badiur dated 11.09.1969 and that the alleged 

agreement of sale and registered deed dated 15.01.1982 are all forged and fraudulent 

documents without consideration. Badiur did not get any possession of the suit property 

through his forged deed of purchase at any time. Similarly, Khadiza did not get possession of 

the suit property at any time through her alleged deed of purchase. After knowing about the 

alleged forged deeds of BadiurandKhadiza, Jamila filed this subsequent suit for cancellation 

of the aforesaid deeds. 

 

Noor Mohammad Khan’s(being dead his heirs) 

Case as plaintiff in Title Suit No.113 of 1984 

(original Title Suit No.364 of 1982) 

and as defendants of other suits 

 

7. Noor Mohammad Khan(Khan), defendant No.5 of Title Suit No.483 of 1974, as sole 

plaintiff, filed Title Suit No.364 of 1982 in the 3
rd

 Court of Subordinate Judge, Dhaka against 

Raisa, Badiur, Jamila and some others for specific performance of contract against Raisa on 

the basis of an agreement for sale dated 23.07.1969 as well as an agreement dated 10.07.1977 

renewing the previous agreement for sale and also for khas possession of the suit property 

contending, inter alia, that Raisa for raising cash money wanted to sell the suit property. 

Whereupon, Khan offered to purchase the same at Tk.45,000/-. Raisa accepted the said offer. 

Thereafter, on receipt of Tk.15,000/- as earnest money she entered into an agreement for sale 

of the suit property with Khan on 23.07.1969. Raisa’s cousin Badiur was a witness to the 

agreement for sale. It was decided that after procuring clearance certificate Raisa would 

execute and register the sale deed in favour of Khan but Raisa could not procure all necessary 

documents for registration of the deed and on her request Khan paid her Tk.5,000/- on 

23.10.1970 but due to political disturbance at the relevant period Khan could not obtain the 

deed of sale from Raisa. After liberation of Bangladesh, Khan traced out Raisa and Badiur in 

September, 1973 and came to know from Raisa that some miscreants took over possession of 

the suit property and that the suit property was enlisted as an abandoned property. Raisa 

disclosed that after release of the suit property, she would execute and register necessary deed 

of sale in favour of Khan. At her request, Khan paid further amount of Tk.3,000/- in the 1
st
 

part of January, 1977. Raisa and Badiur demanded a further amount of Tk.50,000/- to meet 

the expenses for release of the suit property from the list of abandoned property and to evict 

the unauthorized occupants therefrom. Considering all those aspects another instrument was 

executed between them on 21.01.1977 in the form of an agreement. This agreement provided 

that Mr. Yakub Ali, the learned Advocate for Raisa would take steps to release the suit 

property and Khan would pay Tk.50,000/- for this purpose. Accordingly, Khan paid 
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Tk.20,000/- and a cheque of Tk.30,000/- to Raisa and the said instrument was kept in the 

custody of Mr. Yakub Ali. Subsequently, Raisa and Badiur told Khan that Mr. Yakub Ali, 

trapped them and if the transaction of cash as well as the encashment of cheque was made 

with the knowledge of Advocate Mr. Yakub Ali, he would keep a major portion thereof. They 

requested Khan to stop payment of the cheque. Subsequently, on mutual understanding Raisa 

issued a notice rescinding the agreement dated 21.01.1977 through Mr. Yakub Ali and then 

Raisa and Khan entered into a new agreement dated 01.05.1977 fixing the price of suit 

property at Tk.4,50,000/- out of which Tk.1,35,500/- was paid earlier according to the 

previous agreement and Tk.92,500/- was paid on 01.05.1977. It was also decided that Khan 

would pay Tk.60,000/- for release of the suit property. Then, Raisa disclosed that she would 

go to Pakistan to attend the marriage ceremony of her daughter and she appointed her brother 

as her attorney by an instrument dated 17.05.1977 to complete the transaction. Badiur showed 

a photocopy of the said power of attorney to Khan. On 11.07.1977 Khan departed for London 

after paying Tk.10,000/- to Badiur on 10.07.1977 for release of the property. He returned to 

Bangladesh in the middle of 1979 and Badiur told him that they were processing the matter. 

Badiur also asked him to pay further amount as Raisa was badly in need of some money. So, 

he again paid Tk.1,80,000/- in cash out of the balance consideration money as well as 

Tk.10,000/- to Badiur for the purpose of release of the suit property and then left for London. 

He returned in November, 1980 and requested Badiur to complete the transaction and paid 

Tk.40,000/- in cash and further amounts on different dates against written money receipt 

issued by Badiur on behalf of Raisa. The suit property was accordingly released from the list 

of abandoned property on 12.01.1982. Accordingly, Memo No.Sec.XVI/AP-28/77/20 dated 

21.01.1982 was issued by the abandoned property authority releasing the suit property from 

the list of abandoned property. So, Khan came back to Dhaka on 18.01.1982 for getting the 

sale deed registered from Raisa. He paid Tk.40,000/- on 25.01.1982 to Raisa but again Raisa 

informed him that she would go to Syedpur for seven days and asked him to get ready with 

necessary papers for obtaining income tax certificate. Accordingly, Khan procured necessary 

papers but Raisa did not return in time. Thereafter, she refused to execute and register the sale 

deed in his favour. Subsequently, Badiur also disclosed that he purchased the suit property  

from Raisa and he would not transfer it to him, unless he pays an amount of Tk.25,00,000/-. 

Then, on search he found out that Badiur has created a forged sale deed on 15.01.1982 and 

has been claiming the suit property through it illegally. 

 

8. Title Suit No.364 of 1982 was subsequently, transferred to the trial court and 

renumbered as Title Suit No.113 of 1984. 

 

Khadiza Islam’s case  

as plaintiff in Title Suit No.224 of 1997 

(original Title Suit No.75 of 1996) 

and defendants of other suits  

 

9. Khadiza, defendant No.7 of Title Suit No.483 of 1974, as sole plaintiff, filed Title Suit 

No.75 of 1996 in the 5
th

 Court of Subordinate Judge, Dhaka on 27.04.1996 impleading Md. 

Waziuddin, Jamila, Salauddin, Mobarak Hossain, Noor Mohammad Khan and Bangladesh as 

defendant Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 respectively for cancellation of sale deed No.4722 dated 

30.11.1982 obtained through Court by Md. Waziuddin as well as for declaration of her right, 

title to and interest in the suit property and also for recovery of khas possession thereof by 

evicting Md. Waziuddin therefrom and permanent injunction upon Md. Waziuddin not to 

transfer the suit property to anyone stating that Raisa left the suit property under lock and key 

in the wake of liberation war of Bangladesh and in her absence, some miscreants took over 
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possession thereof. The Government erroneously included the suit property in the list of 

abandoned property. However, on Raisa’s application, the Government released the suit 

property on 12.01.1982 and handed over possession thereof to her. Then Raisa transferred the 

suit property to Badiur by a registered deed of sale dated 15.01.1982 in pursuance of an 

agreement dated 11.09.1969 and delivered possession to him. He got his name mutated and 

then with the permission of the Government sold it to Khadiza for a sum of Tk.10,00,000/- by 

a registered deed of sale dated 04.09.1984. Badiur also delivered vacant possession of the suit 

property to her after execution of sale deed. She, after renewal of the lease deed from 

Government, had been in possession thereof till 05.05.1993, by using it as storage of 

construction materials of her construction company namely, Nirman Construction Company 

Limited (shortly, Nirman). Md. Waziuddin (Waziuddin) dispossessed her therefrom through 

Court on 05.05.1993 in Title Execution Case No.06 of 1992 arising out of the judgment and 

decree in First Appeal No.23 of 1984 arising out of Title Suit No.541 of 1982. Khadiza Islam 

was neither a party to Title Suit No.541 of 1982 nor in First Appeal No.23 of 1984 and she 

had no knowledge about the suit or appeal. Khadiza and the Managing Director of Nirman 

filed Civil Petition for Leave to Appeal (CPLA) No.195 of 1993 before the Appellate 

Division against the judgment and decree of First Appeal, but it was rejected as not being 

pressed. Thereafter, Khadiza filed the suit. In the plaint, it was further stated that according to 

the decree of First Appeal No.23 of 1984, Waziuddin was to deposit the balance 

consideration money within ninety days from the date of judgment and decree failing which 

the suit would stand dismissed. Waziuddin deposited the balance consideration money on 

12.02.1992 by Challan No.24047, which was beyond the period of ninety days and, as such, 

the said suit stood dismissed but the execution case was filed on the basis of an inoperative 

decree and Khadiza was dispossessed from the suit property illegally.This suit on transferred 

to the trial court and was renumbered as Title Suit No.224 of 1997. 

     

Title Suit No.112 of 1984 

  Plaintiffs-Salauddin and Mobarak’s case 
 

10. Plaintiffs Salauddin and Mobarak also filed   Title Suit No.436 of 1982 before the 3
rd

 

Court of Subordinate Judge, Dhakafor specific performance of contract against Raisa, 

relating to the suit property. The suit was transferred to the 1
st
 Court of Subordinate Judge, 

Dhakai.e. the trial court and renumbered as Title Suit No.112 of 1984. They claimed specific 

performance of contract relating the suit property on the basis of an agreement of sale dated 

04.05.1979 with Raisa.  

 

Written statement case of defendant No.1 Md. Waziuddin in Title Suit No.224 of 

1997 

 

11. It needs be mentioned that previously in the year 1997, one Waziuddin filed Title Suit 

No.541 of 1982 before the Subordinate Judge, Dhaka for specific performance of contract 

against Raisa on the basis of an oral agreement for sale of the suit property. The said suit was 

dismissed. Then Waziuddin filed First Appeal No.23 of 1984 before the High Court Division 

and the said appeal was allowed and the suit was decreed. Thereafter, Waziuddin got the sale 

deed registered through Court on 30.11.1992 and in execution of the said decree got 

possession of the suit property. Whereupon, Khadiza filed CPLA No.195 of 1993 before this 

Division against the said judgment and decree but it was dismissed as not pressed by 

Khadiza. Subsequently, Khadiza, as plaintiff, filed TS No. 224 of 1997 challenging the said 

judgment and decree of Waziuddin as discussed hereinbefore. 
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Written statement case of Raisa 

(defendant No.1 in T.S. No. 483 of 1974) 

 

12. Raisa filed written statement on 10.08.1976 denying all the allegations made in the 

plaint of Title Suit No.483 of 1974 and stating that she was not acquainted with Jamila and 

she did not enter into any agreement for sale with Jamila and that Jamila filed the suit with 

forged and created Bainapatra/agreement for sale and so, the suit is liable to be dismissed. 

However, Raisa eventually did not contest the suit. 

 

Written statement case of Syed Badiur Rahman 

(defendant No.6 in T.S. No.483 of 1974) 

 

13. Defendant No.6 Badiur also filed a written statement and an additional written 

statement denying the plaint caseand stating that Raisa left the suit property under lock and 

key in the wake of liberation war of Bangladesh and in her absence some miscreants took 

over possession thereof. The Government erroneously included the suit property in the list of 

abandoned property. However, on Raisa’s application, the Government released the suit 

property on 12.01.1982 and handed over possession thereof to her. Then Raisa transferred the 

suit property to Badiur by a registered deed of sale dated 15.01.1982 in pursuance of an 

agreement dated 11.09.1969 and made over possession to him. He got his name mutated and 

then sold it to Khadiza for a sum of Tk.10,00,000/- by a registered deed of sale dated 

04.09.1984 and delivered possession to Khadiza. 

 

Written statement case of  

Defendant Government in the suits 

 

14. The Government as defendant of Title Suit Nos. 483 of 1974, 112 of 1984, 113 of 

1984, and 66 of 1990 contested the suits by filing separate written statements denying all 

material allegations made in the plaints of the aforesaid suits. However, the Government 

admitted part of plaint case of Title Suit No.224 of 1997 filed by Khadiza. In the written 

statements the Government stated,inter alia, that original owner and possessor of the suit 

property was Norendra  Mohan Sen by virtue of a long term lease granted by the then 

Secretary of the State for India Council through registered deed dated  24.04.1924. While 

Remendra Sen was in physical possession of the suit property, he transferred his lease-hold 

interest to Aswimi Kumar Bhowmik, who subsequently transferred the same to Raisa by 

Deed No.8497 dated 11.12.1957. Raisa being a non-bengali Urdu speaking person abandoned 

the suit property during liberation war. She was not traceable after liberation. So, the suit 

property was legally declared as abandoned property and some persons including the 

plaintiffs of the suits were trying to grab the suit property by creating forged bainapatra, 

deeds, etc.  

 

15. However, mysteriously the Government subsequently changed its stand, released the 

suit property from the list of abandoned property allegedly on an application filed by Raisa. 

Thereafter, Raisa allegedly transferred her lease-hold interest to Badiur by registered deed 

No. 1204 dated 15.01.1982. While Badiur had been exercising his right to and possession in 

the suit property as lessee under the Deputy Commissioner, Dhaka, he transferred his lease-

hold interest of the suit property to Khadiza through deed No. 368 dated 04.09.1984. Khadiza 

got the lease renewed from the Government on 03.07.1985 in continuity for a further period 

of 30 years as provided under section 170 of the Government Estate Manual, 1958. The suit 

property is the Khas Mohal Property of the Government. The transferees acquire only lease 
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hold interest in the suit property subject to the terms of the renewal deeds, both Badiur and 

Khadiza mutated their names in the record of right maintained by the Revenue Department 

and she has been possessing the suit property as a lessee under the Government. Khadiza 

became a recognized lessee under the Government through Misc. Case No. 48 of 1984. The 

suit property is being administered by the Dhaka Collectorate. The documents like bainapatra 

or otherwise must be false, fabricated and inoperative and are not binding upon the 

Government in anyway. The decree, if any, must have been obtained by practicing fraud. 

  

Issues, trial and decisions in Title Suit Nos.483 of 1974, 112 of 1984, 113 of 1984, 66 

of 1990 and 224 of 1997. 

Issues 

 

16. The following issues were framed by the trial courts together for deciding the merit of 

Title Suit Nos.483 of 1974, 112 of 1984, 113 of 1984, 66 of 1990 and 224 of 1997, as the 

suits were being tried analogously. 

 

17. wePvh© welq mg~nt 
1) ‡`Iqvbx 483/74, ‡`Iqvbx 112/84, ‡`Iqvbx 113/84, ‡`Iqvbx 224/97, I ‡`Iqvbx 66/90 bs gvgjv 

¸‡jv eZ©gvb AvKv‡i I cªKv‡i  Pwj‡Z cv‡i wK?  
2) bvwjkx m¤úwË eve‡` wg‡mm Rvwgjv LvZzb Pzw³ cªe‡ji wWµx Ges wg‡mm Lvw`Rv Bmjvg I f~wg gš¿Yvj‡qi 

mwP‡ei g‡a¨ 03/07/85 Bs Zvwi‡Li m¤úvw`Z I 11/10/86 Bs Zvwi‡Li 14595 bs jxR `wjj †eAvBbx fv‡e Kiv 
nBqv‡Q wK? 

3)  ivBmv AvwRR KZ©„K ˆmq` ew`Di ingvb ( eZ©gv†b g„Z) Gi m¤úvw`Z I †iwRwóªK…Z 15/01/82 Bs Zvwi‡Li 
1208 bs `wjjwU  †e-AvBbx I †hvM‡hvMx fv‡e m„wRZ Kiv nq wK? 

4)  ˆmq` ew`Di ingvb KZ©„K (eZ©gv‡b g„Z) AvwRRyj Bmjv‡gi AbyK~‡j †iwRw÷«K…Z 1487 bs evqbv cÎwU 
†hvMv‡hvM I ZÂKZvg~‡j m„Rb Kiv nBqv‡Q wK? 

5) 30/11/92 Bs Zvwi‡Li 4722 bs `wjjwU IqvR DwÏb KZ©„K †hvMv‡hvMxfv‡e m¤úv`b I †iwRw÷« Kiv nBqv‡Q 
wK? 

6)  AÎ †gvKÏgvq cªv_x©Z g‡Z wWµx cvB‡Z cv‡i wK?”   
    Recording of evidence 

 

18. The plaintiff of Title Suit Nos.483 of 1974 and 66 of 1990-cum-defendants of some 

other suits examined five witnesses in support of her case and they were cross-examined by 

the various defendants- cum-plaintiffs of some other suits. The defendants-cum-plaintiffs of 

some other suits examined totally fifteen witnesses in support of their respective cases, who 

were cross-examined by the contesting parties. The witnesses also produced some documents 

and those were marked as exhibits by the trial Court. 

   Decision of the trial Court 

 

19. The trial Court on examination of the evidence on record by the common judgment 

and decree/order dated 18.08.2009 dismissed in Title Suit Nos.483 of 1974, 112 of 1984, 113 

of 1984, 224 of 1997 and 66 of 1990 on contest against the contesting defendants and ex-

parte against the rest. 

 

First Appeals 
 

20. Jamila filed Title Appeal Nos.454 of 2009 and 455 of 2009 before the High Court 

Division. The said appeals on transfer were re-numbered as Transfer Appeal(T.A) Nos.09 of 

2004 and 10 of 2004. 
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21. On the other hand, Salauddin and Mobarak filed First Appeal No.167 of 2010 before 

the High Court Division. Noor Mohammad Khan filed First Appeal No.74 of 2010 and on 

transfer it was re-numbered as T.A. No.07 of 2014. 

 

22. Khadiza filed First Appeal No.398 of 2009 and Waziuddin filed First Appeal No.488 

of 2009 and on transfer the appeal of Khadiza was re-numbered as T.A. No.08 of 2014 and 

the appeal filed by Waziuddin was re-numbered as T.A. No.11 of 2014. 

  

Decision of the High Court Division in appeals 

 

23. The High Court Division, upon hearing all the appeals together, by a common 

judgment and decree/order dated 24
th

 August, 2015 decided the appeals as under: 

“In the result, the F.A. No.167 of 2010, T.A. No.7 of 2014, T.A. No.9 of 2014, T.A. 

No.10 of 2014 and T.A. No.11 of 2014 are dismissed without any order as to costs. The 

Transfer Appeal No.6 of 2014 arising out of Title Suit No.224 of 1997 is hereby allowed and 

the Title Suit No.224 of 1997 is decreed. The impugned Judgment and decree so far as it 

relates to Title Suit No.224 of 1997 is set-aside. The appellant of T.A. No.11 of 2014 is 

directed to handover vacant possession of the suit property in favour of Khadiza Islam, 

appellant of T.A. No.8 of 2014 within 6(six) months from the date of receipt of this 

judgment, in default, the appellant T.A. No.8 of 2014 is at liberty to get possession of the 

same through process of law.” 

 

Civil Petition for Leave to Appeals 
 

24. Feeling aggrieved- 

Jamila filed CPLA No.1846 of 2016 before this Division, against the disallowance of her 

Transfer Appeal No.10 of 2014 by theHigh Court Division, for granting leave to appeal and 

leave was granted by this Division, which resulted in Civil Appeal No.30 of 2017.Jamila also 

filed CPLA No.4232 of 2018 against the dismissal of Transfer Appeal No.9 of 2014. 

 

25. The heirs of Noor Mohammad filed CPLA No.1119 of 2016 before this Division 

against disallowance of Transfer Appeal No.07 of 2014 by theHigh Court Division and leave 

was granted by this Division.  This resulted in Civil Appeal No.31 of 2017.The heirs of Noor 

Mohammad also filed CPLA No.2557 of 2016 before this Division against the judgment and 

decree, allowing Transfer Appeal No.08 of 2014 by the High Court Division, for granting 

leave to appeal. Leave was also granted in this CPLA which resulted in Civil Appeal No.32 

of 2017. 

 

26. However, Salahuddin and Mobarak did not take any further steps by filing CPLA 

after disallowance/dismissal of their F.A.No.167 of 1984. Similarly, Waziuddin did not take 

any further steps by filing CPLA after the High Court Division allowed T.A. No. 08 of 2014 

of Khadiza and dismissedT.A. No.11 of 2014 filed by Waziuddin.  

Grounds for granting leave by this Division in CPLA Nos.1119 of 2016, 1846 of 2016 

and 2557 of 2016. 

 

27.  

(I) Because, the High Court Division has committed a manifest error of law in not 

considering the evidences and materials on record adduced from the side of the plaintiff in 

Title Suit No.113 of 1984 and also judgment of the trial Court, particularly when the trial 

Court itself failed to consider those evidence and materials on record while  dismissing the  
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aforesaid Title Suit No.113 of 1984 and, as such, the impugned  judgment and decree 

warrants interference by this court and therefore, the impugned judgment and decree is liable 

to be set aside. 

(II) Because, the High Court Division as a last Court of facts misdirected itself in 

dismissing Transfer Appeal No.7 of 2014 by not taking into consideration the main point at 

issue involved in a suit for specific performance of contract such as whether or not the 

contract of sale between the parties was a genuine one or not and, as such, the impugned 

judgment and decree is liable to be set-aside. 

(III) Because, both the courts below fell into an error of law by not considering that 

a contract for sale subject to subsequent registration of a deed of sale in respect of the 

property involved and that the transferor is debarred from enforcing any subsequent transfer 

in favour of a third-party and, as such, the impugned judgment and decree is liable to be set-

aside. 

(IV) Because, the High Court Division misdirected itself in law in decreeing the 

respondent’s Title Suit No. 224 of 1997 without considering the petitioners’ case that the 

plaintiff-respondent purchased the schedule suit land with prior notice of the contract for sale 

(bainapatra) dated 23.04.1969, exhibit-B, executed by defendant No.1, the original owner of 

the schedule suit land in favour of the petitioners’ predecessor, namely, Noor Mohammad 

Khan, the original plaintiff and, as such, the impugned judgment and decree is liable to be 

set-aside.” 

Arguments on behalf of the contending parties 

Arguments for Jamila Khatun  

Appellant of Civil Appeal No.30 of 2017 and Petitioner of CPLA No.4232 of 2018 

(Plaintiff of Title Suit Nos.483 of 1974 and 66 of 1990 and defendants of other suits) 

 

28. Mr. M. I. Farooqui, the learned Advocate for the appellant of Civil Appeal No.30 of 

2017 takes us through the judgments and decree of the trial court, the first appellate court, the 

connected materials on record and submits as under: 

i) Jamila Khatun examined several witnesses to prove her case for specific performance 

of contract as well as cancellation of the deed of transfer infavour of Khadiza and lease 

renewal document in Khadiza’s favour. She also produced the original bainapatra which is a 

document of more than 30 years old and submitted before the court from the custody of the 

proper person claiming the suit property. The witnesses of Jamila proved the case of 

execution of bainapatra by Raisa, admitted lease holder. The bainapatra was also proved 

through Ashfaq Ahmed (husband of Jamila) and other three witnesses. 

ii) Raisa subsequently accepted consideration money for the suit property on various 

occassions and those money receipts were also proved by Jamila by producing money 

receipts with revenue stamps.  

iii) After receiving most of the considering price upon executing bainapatra Raisa was 

infact merely a trusty of Jamila under sections 91 and 99 of the Trust Act and therefore, there 

was no scope for selling the suit property to any one by Raisa.But the trial court as well as the 

High Court Division (1
st
 Appellate Court) without considering the said facts and 

circumstances unlawfully dismissed the suits as well as the appeals of Jamila. 

iv) Raisa never sold the property to Badiur and the document of alleged sale by Raisa 

was a forged document and that is why Khadiza did not produce the original deed of such 

sale to Badiur by Raisa. Khadiza claimed that all the original documents were/are lying with 

her but she did not produce the most vital document of alleged sale by Raisa to Badiur as it 

was a forged document. The trial court legally dismissed the suit of Khadiza but the High 

Court Division allowed the appeal of Khadiza and decreed the suit infavour of Khadiza 
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unlawfully without considering that the original deed of alleged transfer of the suit property 

by Raisa infavour of Badiur was not produced before the courts below. 

v) In the facts, circumstances and evidence on record, Jamila’s suits ought to have been 

decreed,but the trial court dismissed the suits. The High Court Division erroneously 

dismissed the appeals of Jamila and allowed the appeal of Khadiza and decreed the suit filed 

by Khadiza illegally.Therefore, the civil appeal and CPLA of Jamila are liable to be allowed, 

decreeing the suit for specific performance of contract in favour of Jamila and cancelling of 

documents infavour of Khadiza by setting aside the judgment and decree of the High Court 

Division in Transfer Appeal No.8 of 2014. 

 In support of his submissions, Mr. Farooqui has relied on the decisions of the 

following cases: 

a) Lal Miah (Hajee) Vs. Nurul Amin and others reported in 57 DLR (AD) 64,  

b) Joynab Begum and others Vs. Shaheb Ali Akunji and others reported in 12 MLR (AD) 

337 and 60 DLR (AD) 14.  

c) Md. Akbar & another Vs. Md. Aslam & another reported in 22 DLR (SC) 146.  

Arguments for the heirs of  

Noor Mohammad Khan 

Appellant of Civil Appeal No.31 of 2017 

(Plaintiff of Title Suit No.364 of 1982 renumbered as Title Suit No.113 of 1984 and 

defendants of other suits) 

 

29. Mr. Nozrul Islam Chowdhury, the learned Senior Advocate for the heirs of Khan in 

Civil Appeal No.31 of 2017 takes us through the original bainapatra dated 

23.07.1969allegedly executed by Raisa infavour of Khan, legal notice dated 21.01.1977 

allegedly issued by Raisa to Khan through her learned Advocate cancelling Bainapatra dated 

23.07.1969, the agreementdated 01-05-77 i.e. the alleged Novation deed between Raisa and 

Khan, the other evidence on record and put forward the following arguments before us: 

1) The bainapatra dated 23.07.1969, the legal notice dated 21.01.77 sent by Raisa to 

Khan cancelling bainapatra and the new agreement for sale i.e. novation deed dated 

01.05.1977 and the money receipts clearly show that Raisa had entered into an agreement to 

sell the suit property in favour of Khan and she also received various amounts of money from 

Raisa on difference dates by issuing money receipts.  

2) Raisa admitted in her legal notice (Exhit-1) about the execution of bainapatra dated 

23.07.1969 and subsequently, Raisa also executed a fresh agreement of Novation dated 

01.05.1977 infavour of Khan.  

3) All the documents produced by Khan’s heirs clearly proved that Raisa entered into an 

agreement of sale with Khan on 23.07.1969 long before liberation war. Therefore, their case 

is genuine.  

4) Khadiza, Badiur, Jamila and others created some fraudulent bainapatra/deed of sale, 

etc. after liberation with the knowledge about original agreement between Khan and Raisa. 

5) Khadiza did not produce the original document of alleged sale to Badiur by Raisa as it 

was a forged document. Moreover, Badiur himself was a witness of the agreements of Raisa 

with Khan.  

6) Badiur subsequently, created a forged deed after release of the suit property from the 

list of abandoned property with the money of Khan and then he illegally transferred it 

infavour of Khadiza and Khadiza knowingfully well that the bainapatra as well as transfer 

deed between Raisa and Badiur dated 23.07.69 and 01.05.77 are both forged 

documentscreated transfer document from Badiur. 
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7) Badiur neither acquired any lease hold right nor possession to the suit property from 

Raisa as she never transferred it to him. Therefore, Khadiza had not acquired any lease hold 

right to the suit property by her alleged purchase of leasehold right from Badiur. 

8) The trial court considering all the facts dismissed the suit of Khadiza but the appellate 

court without considering the material evidence on record erroneously allowed the appeal 

filed by Khadiza and decreed the suit in her favour. Therefore, the judgment and decree 

allowing Transfer Appeal No.8 of 2014 and decreeing Title Suit No.224 of 1997 areliable to 

be set aside and the judgment and decree of dismissal by the trial court of the suit is liable to 

be restored. 

9) Khan's heir proved the agreement of sale by Raisa with Khan by a series of documents 

marked as exhibits by the trial court since the year 1969, long before liberation and by 

examining witnesses. So, suit filed by Khan (Title Suit No.113 of 1984) is liable to be 

decreed in their favour. 

Arguments for the heirs of 

Noor Mohammad Khan 

Appellant of Civil Appeal No.32 of 2017 

(Plaintiff of Title Suit No.364 of 1982 renumbered as Title Suit No.113 of 1984 and 

defendants of other suits) 

 

30. Mr. A. J. Mohammad Ali, the learned Senior Advocate for the heirs of Khan in Civil 

Appeal No. 32 of 2017 adapts the arguments of Mr. Nozrul Islam Chowdhury and adds that 

Nuru Miah as a witness of   the novation dated 01.05.1977 proved deed of novation executed 

by Raisa apart from other witnesses. Khan also filed Title Suit No. 364 of 1982 on 

20.07.1982, it was renumbered Title Suit No. 113 of 1984. Therefore, the suit was also filed 

by Khan long before the alleged purchase of the property by Khadiza. He next submits that 

Khan's heirs are entitled to have a decree for specific performance of contract as all other 

claimants to the suit property are bound by the contract, which was executed earlier on 

23.07.1969, under section 27B of the Specific Relief Act. Therefore, Civil Appeal No. 32 of 

2017 is liable to be allowed and the suit filed by Khadiza is liable to be dismissed by setting 

aside the judgment and decree passed by the High Court Division in Transfer Appeal No. 8 of 

2014. 

 

31. In support of the contentions, Mr. A. J. Mohammad Ali has relied on the decisions in 

the cases of- (a) I.C.I (Bangladesh) Limited Vs. M/s. G. K. Brothers reported in 36 DLR 

(HC) 114 (b) Ezaher Meah and others Vs. Shaher Banu and others reported in 2 BLC (AD) 

30 and (c)Lal Miah(Hajee) Vs. Nurul Amin and othersreported in 57 DLR (AD) 64. 

Arguments on behalf of respondent Khadiza 

in Civil Appeal Nos.30-32 of 2017 

(Plaintiff of Title Suit No.224 of 1997, original Title Suit No.75 of 1996 and 

defendants of other suits) 

 

32. Mr. A.M. Aminuddin, the learned Senior Advocate for Khadiza takes us through the 

copy of the deed of transfer by Badiur infavour of Khadiza, renewal of lease by Government 

infavour of Khazida and the other documents filed by her and contends as under:  

1) Admittedly, Raisa had lease-hold right to the suit property through registered 

document dated 11.12.1957. Raisa, being non-bengali left suit property immediately after 

liberation by keeping it under lock and key and some miscreants took over possession of it. 

2) The suit property was then declared as abandoned property. 

3) Raisa filed an application for its release and got the suit property released in her 

favour on 15.01.1982. Raisa then transferred the suit property to Badiur. Thereafter, Badiur 
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transferred the suit property to Khadiza in 1984. Then Khadiza extended the lease from 

Government for another 30 years by paying taka one lac. 

4) Khadiza had been in possession of the suit property by using it as a storage for 

building construction materials of her company ‘Nirman’ till she was dispossessed on 

05.05.1993 in Execution Case No.6 of 1992, arising out of judgment and decree in First 

Appeal No.23 of 1984. 

5) Khadiza was never a party to the suit, appeal or execution case and she had no 

knowledge about the suit, appeal or execution case and after her knowledge she filed the suit. 

6) The trial court erroneously dismissed the suit but the High Court Division in 

consideration of the evidence on record allowed T.A. No.08 of 2014 in favour of Khadiza and 

decreed the suit legally. 

7) The bainapatra and other documentsof Khan, Jamila, Wajiuddin, Mobarak and others 

are all forged documents. Therefore, dismissal of the suits and appeals filed by those persons 

are legal and Civil Appeal Nos.31-32 and CPLA No.4232 of 2018 are all liable to be 

dismissed. 

 

Arguments on behalf of the Government: 

 

33. Mr. Murad Reza, the learned Additional Attorney General with the leave of the Court 

appearing on behalf of the Government in all the appeals and the CPLA takes us through the 

materials on record, specially the original record/file of abandoned property authority since 

middle of the year1977, and submits as under: 

1) It is clear from the record of abandoned property authority that once the prayer for 

releasing the suit property by alleged Raisa Aziz Begum was rejected by the Government, 

considering all the facts and circumstances of the case. The original file relating to the suit 

propertyfrom the beginning of 1972 up to part of 1977 was not traceable and missing. 

2) Subsequently, most curiously the then Chief Election Commissioner issued a letter in 

favour of Raisa Aziz Begum certifying that he knew her. Whereupon, abandoned property 

authority with reference to the said letter again considered alleged Raisa’s case and 

eventually released the suit property from the list of abandoned properties. However, 

immediately after such release order,there is a note in the relevant file showing that the 

release of the suit property from the list of abandoned property should be immediately 

stopped.  

3) Many documents in connection with this case were also seized by CID and now they 

are not traceable. Similarly, it is noted in the file that original file were sent to the then 

learned Government Pleader, but the said original file was not traceable and the learned 

Government Pleader denied to have received any such file. 

4) The original alleged deed of sale by Raisa to Badiur was neither produced before the 

abandoned property authority/Dhaka collectorate i.e. Khas Mohal property management 

authority nor in the Court   by Khadiza in support of her case. She has not also filed the said 

most important document in any other court or Government authority. This clearly proves 

that Raisa did not sale/transfer her lease-hold right to the suit property to Badiur or anyone 

else. 

5) From the record of the abandoned property authority, it is crystal clear that the suit 

property was rightly included in the list of abandoned property, but unfortunately in 

connivance with some dishonest Government Officials a valuable property of the 

Government was unlawfully released from the list of abandoned property authority. There is 

no evidence on record to prove that Raisa was in Bangladesh after liberation. Everything was 

done through a fictitious person. 
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6) Even if the suit property is released from the list of abandoned property, the suit 

property is a Government khas mohal property. Khadiza could not produce the original 

documents of alleged sale by Raisa to Badiur and, therefore, she was not entitled to extend 

the leasehold right as Raisa never transferred the property to Badiur.  

7) As the original deed of purchase by Badiur could not be produced, Khadiza miserably 

failed to prove her title to or leasehold right to the suit property. Therefore, the subsequent 

extension of lease by Khadiza is exfacie collusive, illegal and void. 

8) Waziuddin also obtained a decree in F.A. No.283 of 1983 for specific performance of 

contract by forged document. So, the said decree ought to be set-aside and his registered deed 

is liable to be cancelled. 

9) All the suits including that of Khadiza are fictitious suits filed through some forged 

documents and therefore, all the suits were legally dismissed by the trial court on examining 

the evidence on record and all the appeals are legally dismissed by the High Court Division 

except the appealfiled by Khadiza. The appeal filed by Khadiza ought to have been dismissed 

as she failed to prove her case but the High Court Division without properly examining the 

evidence on record erroneously allowed Khadiza’s appeal and decreed the suit. Thus, Civil 

Appeal No.32 of 2017 and CPLA 4232 of 2018 are liable to be allowed to the extent of 

Khadiza’s decree in appeal for khas possession and the judgment and decree passed by the 

trial Court dismissing all the suitsincluding that of Waziuddinis/are liable to be restored.Civil 

Appeal Nos.30 and 31 of 2017 are liable to be dismissed. 

10) The matters/appeals/civil petition  are of exceptional in nature as a deed for lease 

extension was obtained by Khadiza through forged documents and several influencial parties 

are fighting for grabbing the valuable Government property i.e. suit property and one of them 

i.e. Khadiza almost succeeded to do soin collusion with the Government Officials. Thus in  

these matters, the Court’s power under article 104 of the Constitution needs to exercised for 

doing complete justice to protect a Government property, otherwise other land/property 

grabbers would be encouraged to do so.  

Examination of records: 

 

34. We have examined the leave granting order, the judgment and decree passed in the 

various suits, in the appeals, the CPLAs of the respective parties and carefully examined the 

evidence on record including the documents marked as exhibits by the trial court and the 

testimonies of the witnesses. We have also carefully studied the file of Abandoned Property 

Authority, produced before us as per our direction. 

Admitted facts: 

 

35. The suit property is the khas Mohal property of the Government vide plaint and the 

schedule of the plaint of Title Suit No.112 of 1984 filed by Khadiza. Norendra Mohan Sen 

(Norendra) was a long term lessee under the Government by virtue of a long term lease 

granted by the then Secretary of State of India Council through a registered deed. Norendra 

transferred his leasehold right to Aswini Kumar Bhowmik(Aswini) and Aswini transferred 

his leasehold right to Raisa by a registered deeddated 11.12.1957 vide judgments of the trial 

Court and the High Court Division, testimonies of D.W.1 and other witnesses and the 

materials on record. Khan’s heirs claim that Norendra was the owner of the suit property and 

he transferred it Aswini by a registered deed. Aswini then transferred the suit property to 

Raisa by a registered deed dated 11.12.1957. However, during their arguments before us, the 

learned Senior Advocates/ Advocates for all the contending parties admitted that the suit 

property is the Khas Mohal property of the Government and Raisa was a long term lessee 

under the Government. The suit property bearing Holding No.10 is situated at Purana Paltan, 

Dhaka i.e. at the heart of Capital and is a valuable property. All the plaintiffs of respective 
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suits claimed the suit property through Raisa. Raisa was a non-bengali. So, immediately 

before liberation of Bangladesh, Raisa left the suit property. Whereupon, the suit property 

was declared as an abandoned property and was enlisted in the list of abandoned properties. 

The suit property being enlisted as an abandoned property was included in the ‘ka’ list of the 

abandoned properties published in the Gazette Notification. But subsequently it was dropped 

from the list of abandoned properties by another Gazette Notification. It was released on 

prayer of a person allegedly claiming herself to be Raisa, the leaseholder of the suit property. 

  Deliberation of the Court: 

 

36. At the beginning, we would like to discuss the merit of the case of Khadiza, as 

allowing of her appeal is challenged by the heir of Khan in Civil Appeal No.32 of 2017 and 

by Jamila in CPLA No.4232 of 2018. 

 

37. The learned Additional Attorney General in his arguments strenuously argued that the 

suit property is an abandoned property and Raisa never executed any bainapatra or deed of 

transfer in favour of Badiur and that those are forged documents but the Government 

Officials in collusion with Badiur and Khadiza excluded this valuable property from the list 

of abandoned property. 

 

38. Khadiza filed a suit for declaration of her 16 annas title to the suit property, recovery 

of khas possession, perpetual injunction and some other relief. Therefore, we would first 

examine how far Khadiza has been able to prove her title to the suit property.  

 

39. For this purpose, we would first study the abandoned property record/file relating to 

the suit property, which has been submitted by the concerned authority as per order of this 

Court.  

 

40. Some of the notes of this file are quite mysterious and so, we would like to quote 

those relevant notes hereinafter: 

“clM¡Ù¹ a¡w- 13-7-77  qC−a Bx l¢qj M¡e,  
clM¡Ù¹ a¡w- 13-7-77 qC−a e¤l ®q¡−pe M¡e,  
clM¡Ù¹ a¡w- 13-7-77  qC−a Blg¡e EŸ£e Bqjc 
1z  B−m¡QÉ fœ …¢m ®cM¡  k¡C−a f¡−l z j§m e¢b 10/11/76 a¡¢l−M Legal cell ®fËlZ Ll¡ qCu¡¢Rmz HMe 
fkÑÉ¿¹ ®gla f¡Ju¡ k¡u e¡Cz Legal cell  e¢b¢V ®gla ®cJu¡l SeÉ a¡¢Nc ®cJu¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz 
B−hceL¡l£NZ i¡s¡ ¢cu¡−Re ¢Le¡ S¡e¡ k¡u e¡z i¡s¡ f¢l−n¡−dl Q¡m¡e L¢f c¡¢Mm L¢l−a ¢e−cÑn ¢c−a f¡¢lz 
Mps¡ S¡l£ Ll¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz   
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
18/7/77  
¢h¢m ew- 626(2) a¡w- 28-7-77 
clM¡Ù¹ a¡w- 20-7-77  qC−a  Blg¡e EŸ£e   
clM¡Ù¹ a¡w- 20-7-77  qC−a Bx l¢qj M¡e  
clM¡Ù¹ a¡w- 20-7-77  qC−a  e§l ®q¡−pe M¡e  
2z  B−m¡QÉfœ…¢m ®cM¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz i¡s¡ ®cJu¡l SeÉ ¢e−cÑn ®cJu¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz 
 Mps¡ S¡l£ Ll¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz 
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
6/8/77 
fœ a¡w- 20-8-77  qC−a e¤l ®q¡−pe M¡e,   
fœ a¡w- 23-8-77 qC−a Bx l¢qj M¡e 
fœ a¡w- 23-8-77  qC−a Blg¡e EŸ£e 
3z   B−m¡QÉ fœ¢V −cM¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz 
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10 eðl f¤l¡e¡fÒVeÙÛ f¢laÉš² h¡s£¢V−a f¤l¡ae i¡s¡¢Vu¡  ¢qp¡−h ¢Xj¡ä ®e¡¢Vn f¡Cu¡ Se¡h e§l ®q¡−pe, Bhc¤l 
l¢qj M¡e Hhw Blg¡e E¢Ÿe Bq−jc ¢iæ ¢iæ ®c¡L¡−e hÉhp¡ Q¡m¡C−a−Rez ¢Xj¡ä ®e¡¢Vn ®j¡a¡−hL ®cM¡ k¡u 
j¡¢pL 90/- V¡L¡ ¢qp¡−h 1/1/72 qC−a V¡L¡ Sj¡ ®cJu¡l ¢e−cÑn ®cJu¡ qu fœ¡wn 5,33 J 7 fªx)z a¡q¡l¡ 
31/7/77 a¡¢lM fkÑÉ¿¹ ¢edÑ¡¢la q¡−l i¡s¡ f¢l−n¡d L¢lu¡−Re (fœ¡wn 24 ,29 J 36fªx)z f¤l¡ae i¡s¡¢Vu¡  ¢qp¡−h 
a¡q¡l¡ fË−aÉ−LC f¤hÑa f¤l¡ae i¡s¡¢Vu¡  l¢nc c¡¢Mm L¢lu¡−Re (fœ¡wn 16, 15,  12 J 11 fªx) fË−u¡Se ®h¡−d 
B−l¡ i¡s¡¢Vu¡ l¢nc Q¡Ju¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz 
Hja¡hÙÛ¡u f¤l¡ae i¡s¡¢Vu¡ ¢qp¡−h a¡q¡−cl eivÏ®cJu¡l hÉ¡f¡−l ¢h−hQe¡ Ll¡ k¡u ¢Le¡ pcu B−c−nl SeÉ ®fn 
Ll¡ qCmz 
ü¡xc¤Öf¡WÉ 
7/10/77 
4z Ef p¢Q−hl p¢qa B−m¡Qe¡ qCu¡−R Mps¡ S¡l£ Ll¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz  
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
17/10/77 
S¡l£ ew 936 a¡w-18/10/77 
5z 10 H eðl f¤l¡e¡fÒV−e f¤l¡ae i¡s¡¢Vu¡ ¢qp¡−h ¢Xj¡ä ®e¡¢Vn f¡Cu¡ Se¡h e§l ®q¡−pe, Bhc¤l l¢qj M¡e Hhw 
Blg¡e E¢Ÿe BqjÈc ¢iæ ¢iæ ®c¡L¡−e hÉhp¡ L¢l−a−Rez f¤l¡ae i¡s¡¢Vu¡ ¢qp¡−h i¡s¡l l¢nc c¡¢Mm L¢lu¡−Rez 
(fœ¡wn 11, 12 J 15 J 16) ¢Xj¡ä ®e¡¢Vn ®j¡a¡−hL j¡¢pL 90/- V¡L¡ ¢qp¡−h 1/1/72 qC−a V¡L¡ Sj¡ ®cJu¡l 
SeÉ ¢e−cÑn ®cJu¡ qu (fœ¡wn 5, 7, 22 J 33 fªx)z a¡q¡l¡ 31/12/77 fkÑÉ¿¹ i¡s¡ f¢l−n¡d L¢lu¡−Rez (fœ¡wn 
39 qC−a 40 fªx)z 
a¡q¡l¡ eivÏ Q¡¢qu¡ B−hce L¢lu¡−Re (fœ¡wn 32 fªx)z a¡q¡−cl B−hce ¢h−hQe¡ Ll¡ k¡u ¢Le¡z pcu B−c−nl 
SeÉ ®fn Ll¡  qCmz 
ü¡xc¤Öf¡WÉ 
23/12/77 
6z How can it be determined if they are old tenants or not without  the original  file ? The 

file from L.C. may be brought such for the purpose. 

s/d- illegible  

26.12.77 

    Legal cell −L j§me¢b ®gla ¢c−a Ae¤−l¡d Ll¡ qC−a−Rz 
   ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
   31/12/77 
7z e¢b ew 1C -52/72 Awn ®q¡¢ôw ew 10/H, f¤l¡e¡ fÒVeÙÛ e¢b M¡e¡ Na  22/12/76 a¡¢l−M plL¡l£ E¢Lm  
p¡−q−hl  ¢eLV f¡W¡−e¡ qCu¡¢Rm z Eš² e¢b M¡e¡ AcÉ¡hd£ ®gla B−p e¡Cz pcu  ¢h−hQe¡l SeÉ ®fn Ll¡ qCmz   
S¡e¡−e¡  qELz 
 V.A.L¡kÑH²j ¢ee z 
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
9.2.78 
8z  ac¿¹ ¢l−f¡−VÑl SeÉ ¢ehÑ¡q£ fË−L±nm£  H¢f ¢hi¡N Hl ¢eLV ®mM¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz  
Mps¡ S¡l£ Ll¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz     
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
11.2.78 
¢h¢m ew- 166 a¡w- 13-2-78 (fª 45) 
9z  Pl. send an urgent requisition to the G.P.  Dacca to send the file lese.  Put up with it on 

25.3.78. who had asked  to call for a report on 10, where the file is on  10/A  PP? will he 

clarify please?  

ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
17.3.78 
10z  Be the drafted letter issued at once to G.P. The draft for the letter at page 45 

was ready put up by the former S.A. that in his writing is not available now. Whether the 

typist made any mistake or the Asstt. through inadvertence or otherwise,  cannot  be 

determined  now  D.S. may see this with reference to his query dt. 17.03.1978  
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ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
17.3.78 
¢h¢m ew- 352 a¡w 21-3-78 ( fªx 46) 
11.Pl. issue reminder to G.P. to send back the file under mention in our memo at p-46/C. 

Pl. do not delay. 

ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
11/6 
Orders above. 

Draft put up below may issue. 

ü¡xc¤Öf¡WÉ 
12/6/79 
Page No. 47 issue. 

fœ¡wn  48 S¡¢l 
fœ¡wn  49 S¡¢lz 
12z  Ae¤−µRc ew 7 H E−õ¢Ma e¢b¢V n¡M¡ fËd¡e p¡−q−hl  pjÈ§−M ¢h‘ ¢S,¢f, p¡−q−hl A¢g−p ®M¡S Ll¡ qCu¡−R z 
B−m¡QÉ e¢b¢V f¡Ju¡ k¡u e¡Cz Hje¢L a¡q¡−cl X¡ul£−a E−õ¢Ma j¡jm¡l ®L¡e fËL¡l E−õM f¡Ju¡ k¡u e¡Cz 
®L¡−VÑ L−uLh¡l E−õ¢Ma j¡jm¡l haÑj¡e f¢l¢ÙÛ¢a S¡¢e−a ®N−m −L¡−VÑl ®p−lÙ¹¡ A¢g−pl ®fnL¡l ®jph¡q p¡−qh 
S¡e¡Cu¡−Re  ®k , E−õ¢Ma j¡jm¡l ®lLXÑ f¡Ju¡ k¡−µR e¡z 
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
29/10/81  
13z n¡M¡ fËd¡e(BCe) j−q¡c−ul p¢qa B−m¡Qe¡ qCmz 
BCe ®L¡−ol pjÙ¹ ®lLXÑ Ae¤på¡e L¢lu¡ e¢b lrL S¡e¡Cu¡−Re 10/H f¤l¡e¡ fÒVeÙÛ h¡s£l Bl ®L¡e e¢b BCe 
®L¡−o e¡Cz  
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
31/10/81 
n¡M¡ fËx(BCe) 
14z 10 ew f¤l¡e¡ fÒVeÙÛ h¡s£¢V M¡¢lS Ll¡l SeÉ Se¡h¡ l¡up¡ B¢SS ®hN−jl B−hcez 
B−m¡QÉ fœ¢V ®cM¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz  Se¡h¡ l¡up¡ B¢SS 10 eðl f¤l¡e¡fÒVeÙÛ f¢laÉš² j¡¢mL¡e¡ c¡h£ L¢lu¡ 
B−hce L−lez j¡¢mL¡e¡l üf−r c¢mm pq pw¢nÔø L¡NSfœ Hhw f¡¢LÙÛ¡e k¡Ch¡l SeÉ CµR¡ fËL¡n L−le e¡C - 
HC j−jÑ ül¡øÊ j¿»Z¡mu qC−a fË¢a−hce  Q¡Ju¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz 
Mps¡ S¡l£ Ll¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz  
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
30/11/77 
¢h¢m ew- 1118 a¡w 30-11-77( fªx7 
fœ a¡w- 10-7-78  qC−a Legal cell (fªx 8 
15zAs desired by the OSD (Legal Cell) the file may be sent to S.O. Law. 

S/d- illegible  

18/7 
¢h¢m ew- 137 a¡w 17-5-79( fªx-9 
¢h¢m ew- 138 a¡w 17-5-79( fªx-10 
ew 213 a¡w 22.5.79 qC−a  H q¡¢Lj( fªx 11 
16z¢h−hQÉ fœ âøhÉ- B−hceL¡¢le£l ¢eLV HLM¡e¡ Forwarding letter pq ül¡ØVÊ j¿»Z¡m−ul Form f§lZ 
Ll¡l -Mps¡ EfÙÛ¡fe Ll¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz  
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
24/5/79 
17z------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
fœ¡wn 42 S¡¢l 
fœ¡wn 43 S¡¢l 
No. 1646- Im/III(IN-40/780 dt. 4-7-80 from M/O Home Affairs. 
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18z¢j−pp lCp¡ B¢SS 10 ew f¤l¡e¡ fÒVe h¡s£l j¡¢mL¡e¡ c¡h£ L¢lu¡−Rez c¡h£l pjbÑ−e ¢a¢e c¢mm (¢aeM¡e¡), 
M¢au¡e Hhw pcl jqL¥j¡ A¢gp¡l, Y¡L¡/ c¢re) Hl ¢eLV ¢m¢Ma 2/5/72 a¡¢l−Ml f−œl g−V¡ØVÉ¡V L¢f c¡¢Mm 
L¢lu¡−Rez j¿»Z¡mu ee Afne  J e¡N¢lLaÄ p¡¢VÑ¢g−LV ül¡øÊ j¿»Z¡mu qC−a pwNËq L¢lu¡−Rez ¢j−pp l¡Cp¡ 
B¢SS−L 9/1/80 a¡¢l−Ml pÈ¡l−L j§m c¢mm CaÉ¡¢c c¡¢Mm L¢l−a hm¡ qCu¡−Rz ¢L¿º Cq¡l ®L¡e Sh¡h f¡Ju¡ k¡u 
e¡Cz−cM¡ k¡u ®k, h¡s£¢V pÇf−LÑ HL¢V j¡jm¡J c¡−ul Ll¡ B−Rz j¡jm¡¢Vl ¢hÙ¹¡¢la ¢hhlZ e¢b−a e¡Cz h¡s£¢V 
haÑj¡−e L¡q¡l cM−m B−R a¡q¡lJ ®L¡e abÉ e¡Cz 

HC AhÙÛ¡u j¡jm¡ pÇf−LÑ Ah¢qa Ll¡l SeÉ BCe ®L¡o−L Ae¤−l¡d Ll¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz h¡s£¢V pÇf−LÑ 
p−lS¢j−e ac¿¹ L¢lu¡ HL¢V ¢l−f¡VÑ ®cJu¡l SeÉ J S−u¾V p¡−iÑ ¢Vj−L ®mM¡ k¡C−a f¡−lz 
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
24/7/80 
19zfËÙ¹¡h j−a L¡S Ll¦ez9-1-80 a¡¢l−Ml ¢Q¢Wl a¡¢Nc ¢ce Hhw j§m c¢mm fœ mCu¡ ay¡q¡l R¢h J ej¤e¡ ü¡rl 
pq 07  ¢c−el j−dÉ j¿»Z¡m−u hÉ¢š²Nai¡−h  Ef¢ÙÛa qC−a hm¤ez R¢h J ej¤e¡ ü¡rl HLSe fËbj ®nËZ£l ®N−S−VX 
A¢gp¡l à¡l¡ paÉ¡¢ua qC−a qC−hz 
f§hÑ fªù¡u L  ¢Q¢q²a pÇf−LÑ Ah¢qa Ll¡l SeÉ e¢b  BCe ®L¡−o  f¡W¡−e¡ ®Nmz 
ü¡xc¤Öf¡WÉ 
28/7/80 
20z --------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
21---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
22---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
23z------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
24z j¡jm¡l f¢l¢ÙÛ¢a S¡e¡l SeÉ ®e¡V L¢lu¡ ®eJu¡ q−m¡z 
ü¡xc¤Öf¡WÉ 
11/9/80  
 Application dt.23.09.81 from Raisa Aziz Begum 

25z f¤l¡e¡ fÒVeÙÛ 10 ew h¡s£l Efl j¡¢mL¡e¡ c¡h£ pÇf¢LÑa l¡CR¡ B¢SS ®hN−jl B−hce 96 f¡a¡u ®cM¡ 
k¡C−a f¡−l z ¢a¢e C¢af§−hÑ B−hce L¢l−m a¡q¡l ¢eLV a¡q¡l c¡h£l üf−r pw¢nÔø L¡NSfœ J c¢mm¡¢c j¿»Z¡m−u 
®fn Ll¡l SeÉ ejv nq Ges Av‡e`bKvwibx cvwK¯—v‡b hvIqvi B”Qv cªKvk KwiqvwQ‡jb wKbv  GB g‡g© cªwZ‡e`b  
†`Iqvi Rb¨ ¯̂ivóª gš ¿Yvjq‡K Aby‡iva Kiv nq| AÎ gš¿Yvj‡qi e³‡e¨I Abymi‡Y Rbvev iBQv AvwRR Zvnvi `vexi  
¯̂c‡¶ †hme `wjjcÎ I KvMRvw` †ck K‡ib Zvnv 63-87 cvZvq  †`Lv hvB‡Z cv‡i| ¯̂ivóª gš¿Yvjq KË©„K cª`Ë 
mb`  nB‡Z †`Lv hvq †h wZwb cvwK¯—v‡b hvIqvi B”Qv cªKvk K‡ib bvB| Rbvev ivBQv AvwRR †h eiveiB 
evsj‡`kx bvMwiK †m g‡g©I ¯̂ivóª gš¿Yvjq mb`cÎ Rvix Kwiqv‡Qb| Ae ’̄v `„v‡ó  cªwZqgvb nq †h Rbvev iBQv 
AvwRR †eMgB D³ evoxi cªK…Z gvwjK| eË©gv‡b hvnviv D³ evox‡Z emevm Kwi‡Z‡Qb Zvnv‡`l eË“‡e¨I iBQv 
AvwRR‡K gvwjK ewjqv D‡j-L Kwiqv‡Q| Z‡e BwZc~‡e© welqwU  m¤ú‡K© †Kvb wm×vš — †bIqv nq bvB| bw_ Lvbv 
wj‡Mj †m‡j wQj| 
26| Aby‡”Q` 7 nB‡Z cw«Zqgvb nq  D³ evox msµvšÍ Av‡iv GKwU dvBj wQj Ges wU,Gm †Km bs-493/74 Gi 
†cªw¶‡Z 1976 mv‡j miKvix DwK‡ji wbKU †cªiY Kiv nq| G wel‡q Avwg e¨w³MZfv‡e  miKvix DwK‡ji mwnZ 
†hvMv‡hvM KwiqvwQ wKš‘ dvBj GesD³ gvgjv m¤ú‡K© †Kvb cvËvB cvIqv hvq bvB| dvBjwU cvIqv  hvIqvi ci 
†Kvbm¤¢vebv Av‡Q ewjqvI g‡b nq bv| Gcªm‡½ †bv‡Ui 12 Ges 13  Aby‡”Q‡`l cªwZ m`q `„wó AvKl©Y Kiv 
nBj|D³ gvgjvwU wK msµvš Í Zvnv eySv hvB‡Z‡Q bv| gvgjvi cªK…wZ m¤ú‡K© Ah¢qa nIqvi c~‡e© gvwjKvbv `vex 
m¤ú‡K© †Kvb wm×vš Í †eJu¡ mgxPxb nB‡e ewjqv g‡b nB‡Z‡Q bv| evoxi Dci gvwjKvbv `vex`vi‡K gvgjv msµvšÍ 
†Kvb KvMRcÎ _vwK‡j Zvnv †ck Kivi Rb¨ ejv hvB‡Z cv‡i| 
Yes 

¯̂v¶i: c¤Öf¡WÉ                                                ¯̂v¶i: c¤Öf¡WÉ 
 20/11/81                              DcmwPe               26/11/81 
27.  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
28. Receipt at page 103/C along with its enclosures in response to our memo at page 97/C 

may kindly be seen. This relates to the claim of ownership on holding No.10, Purana 

Paltan by Raisa Aziz Begum. In this connection page 96/C and para 25/N & 26/N ante 

may also kindly be seen. As for T.S. Case No.483 of 1974 as mentioned under para 26/N 
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ante, this is a case for breach of specific performance of contract. It appears that the 

owner of the said holding allegedly entered into an agreement with one Mrs. Jamila 

Khatoon for selling the property in question on 20
th

 January, 1972. The applicant, Raisa 

Aziz Begum personally appeared before me and stated that the said case was 

engineered by said Mrs. Jamila Khatoon Begum to grab her property illegally.As for 

this Ministry, we are not any way connected or concerned in the said suit for specific 

performance of contract as initiated by Mrs. Jamila Khatoon wife of Ashfaque Ahmed. It 

appears from page 102/C, that the rent of the property is being paid by Mrs. Raisa Aziz 

Begum as a owner of the property. It appears that rent is cleared up to date. Now the 

papers submitted by Mrs. Raisa Aziz in support of her ownership as previously indicated 

under para 25/N ante, we may strike off the property at 10, Purana Paltan from the 

abandoned list and release the same in favour of its owner, Mrs. Raisa Aziz Begum 

wife of late Sayed Azizur Rahman. 
S/d illegible 

04.12.81 

29. Notes above may be perused. The owner Mrs. Raisa Aziz Begum is a Bangladeshi 

national (C.P>94)& comes of a respectable Muslim family as certified by the Chief 

Election Commissioner, vide C.P.95. The house may be struck off from the list of A.P. 

S/d illegible 

04.12.81 

30. According to the petitioner herself, her prayer for release was rejected in 1976 

(vide memo No.1-E-52/72/296 dt. 20-5-76).Please put up that file for perusal. 

S/d illegible 

08.12.81 

31. Minutes at para 30/N ante prepage bottom may kindly be seen. The original file as is 

already indicated under para 26/N ante was sent to the Court in connection with the suit 

(483/1974) for specific performance of contract. The alleged suit was brought by one 

Mrs. Jamila Khatoon for breach of contract by Mrs. Raisa Aziz Begum, the claimant of 

the property at 10, Purana Paltan. As the original file is missing the memo No.1-E-

52/72/296 dt. 20.5.76 is not available in the Ministry now. It appears that the previous 

petition was rejected because of the above mentioned suit in which this Ministry is not 

involved anyway. Further this suit reveals that the applicant Raisa Aziz Begum is the 

defecto owner of the property in question. Being asked by this Ministry the papers 

submitted by Mrs. Raisa Aziz bear testimony that she is the original owner of the 

property at 10, Purana Paltan, Dacca. Now at this stage in pursuance of Article 16(2) 

of the P.O.16/72, the property at 10, Purana Paltan, Dacca may be dropped from AP 

list in favour of Mrs. Raisa Aziz Begum. 

S/d illegible 

14.02.81 

32. Let us wait for the original file. 

33. S.O XVI to please put up in file. 

34. Receipt at pages 104-109/C received from Raisa Aziz Begum regarding her claim on 

the property at 10, Purana Paltan may kindly be seen. In this connection preceding notes 

from 25/N ante detailing the issue may also kindly be perused. As to the observation 

under para 32/N ante prepage bottom, it is already indicated under paras 12/N and 13/N 

ante that the original file is neither available in Ministry nor in the office of the CJP. In 

the office of the CJP extensive search was made in my presence, but the file was not 

found and there is little possibility of its availability as it is missing since 1974. Now in 

consideration of the papers made available by Raisa Aziz Begum in support of her right 
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of claim on the property in question and the exposition made under para 31/N ante, the 

property at 10, Purana Paltan may be dropped from the AP list. 

35. Why had she delay in filing this papers? 

36. Issue the draft. 

37. Minutes at para 35/N ante prepage bottom. In this connection page 110/C and the 

submission made by Raisa Aziz Begum may kindly be seen at page 112/C. It appears that 

Mrs. Raisa Aziz Begum has been claiming the title of ownership on the property at 10, 

Purana Paltan since 1972 and has been pursuing it continuously as it appears from the 

instant representation. Now in pursuance of the expectation made under para 34/N ante 

and the Article 16(2) of P.O.16/72, the property at 10, Purana Paltan may be dropped 

from the AP list. 

38. Issue the draft. 

S/d. illegible 

12.01.82 

39. Please discuss and stay proceedings until we come to a decision. 

40. Pl put up in file immediately. 

41. Slip at page 115/C along with the minutes of the HSM on it as transcribed under para 

39/N ante may kindly be seen. This relates to the holding No.10, Purana Paltan, Dacca 

which is dropped from the list of AP in pursuance of Article 16(2) of the P.O. 16/72. In 

this connection para 37/N ante and preceding paras from 25/N ante may also kindly be 

seen for discussion of the issue with the Hon’ble State Minister. 

42. H.S.M. is no more in office and as such there is no scope for discussion with him. 

43. S.O. XII for n.a. 

 

44. Notes from preceding para 41/N ante. It is for kind decision whether eviction as 

prayed for vide representation at page 121/C should be restored to. Submitted for kind 

orders. 

S/d. illegible 

31.03.82 

 

45. What is the name of the occupant & what is his profession? Please give him a notice 

by name to vacate the house on or before 5.4.1982 failing which he will be evicted, 

with copy to the owner. 

S/d. illegible 

31.03.82 

 

46. Pl issue the draft. 
47| we‡eP¨ cÎ 124-156 cvZvq Ges 157-160 cvZvq AbyMªnc~e©K †`Lv hvB‡Z cv‡i| welqwU 10 bs cyivbv cëb ’̄ 
evoxi `Lj m¤úwK©Z| evoxwU weMZ 12-1-82 Zvwi‡L Rbvev iBmv AvwR‡Ri AbyK~‡j LvwiR Kiv nBqv‡Q| evox 
emevm KvixM‡Yi g‡a¨ ïaygvÎ kvwš—bMi K¬ve e¨ZxZ evwK 6Rb emevmKvix gvwjK‡K `Lj eySvBqv w`qv‡Q ewjqv 
Rbvev iBmv AvwRR Av‡e`‡b RvbvBqv‡Qb| (cÎvsk 124 nB‡Z 156) kvwš—bMi K¬v‡ei `Ljxq Ask eySvBqv 
†`Iqvi Rb¨ 22-5-82 Zvs Rbvev iBmv AvwRR Av‡e`b Kwi‡j Dc‡`óv g‡nv`q “Can’t we help if she is 

stating the facts?”  ewjqv gšÍe¨ Kwiqv‡Qb| 
48| kvwš ÍbMi K¬ve, Dc‡`óv g‡nv`‡qi wbKU A ’̄vqxfv‡e _vKvi AbygwZ cªv_©bv Kwi‡j mg¯— welqwU wjwLZfv‡e 
Dc‡`óv g‡nv`‡qi `„wó‡MvPi Kiv nq (cÎvsk 160) kvwšÍbMi K¬ve‡K 27-2-76 Zvwi‡L B‡óU Awdm nB‡Z 
Zvnv‡`i `Ljxq Ask eivÏ Kiv nq| wKšÍ fvov avh©¨ wKsev cwi‡kv‡ai †Kvb cªgvb bw_‡Z bvB| miKvix evm ’̄vb 
cwi`ßi nB‡Z †Kvb mgqB Zvnv‡`i wbKU nB‡Z fvov Av`v‡qi †Kvb e¨e ’̄v Mªnb K‡i bvB| G¶‡b kvwš ÍbMi K¬v‡ei 
`Ljxq As‡ki fvov wba©viY Kwiqv Dnv Av`vqc~e©K evoxi gvwjK‡K `Lj eySvBqv †`Iqvi Rb¨ e¨e ’̄v Mªnb Kiv 
hvB‡Z cv‡i| 
S/d. illegible 
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10.06.82 
49| 47-48 Aby‡”Q` Awdm †UvKv `ªóe¨| kvwš —bMi K¬ve‡K 07 w`‡bi wfZi `Lj Qvwoqv †`Iqvi Rb¨ †bvwUk 
†`Iqv hvB‡Z cv‡i| Gi wfZi `Lj bv eywS‡q w`‡j D‡”Q` Kiv hvB‡Z cv‡i| Ab¨ †Kv_vI Lvwj RvqMv/evox 
_vwK‡j kvwš —bMi K¬v‡ei AbyK~‡j eivÏ we‡ePbv Kiv hvB‡Z cv‡i| 
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
2/11/1982 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
56z A¡−m¡QÉ fœ¡wn cu¡ L¢lu¡ fœ f¡a¡ 162 ®cM¡ k¡C−a f¡−l z H²£s¡ J pwØL«¢a ¢hi¡N n¡¢¿¹eNl LÓ¡−hl 
B−hc−e n¡¢¿¹eNl LÓÁ¡−hl Ae¤L¥−m haÑj¡e Ol¢V f¤ex hl¡Ÿ Abh¡ AeÉ HL¢V Ol hl¡−Ÿl SeÉ B¿¹x j¿»e¡mu−L 
Ae¤−l¡d L¢lu¡−Re z 

HC fËpw−N E−õMÉ ®k 10ew f¤l¡e¡ fmVe h¡s£¢V haÑj¡−e f¢laÉJ² h¡s£ Ol Hl a¡¢mL¡ qC−a Cq¡l j§m j¡¢mL 
Se¡h¡ lCp¡ B¢SS ®hNj−L cMm h¤T¡Cu¡ ®cJu¡ qCu¡−R, öd¤j¡œ I¢aqÉh¡q£ n¡¢¿¹eNl LÁ¡h a¡q¡−cl cMm Se¡h¡ 
l¡Cp¡ B¢SS−L R¡¢su¡ ®ce e¡C z Hja¡hØq¡u kMe LÁ¡h h¡s£ R¡¢s−a fËpºa, AaHh LÁ¡−hl SeÉ LÁ¡h−L a¡q¡−cl 
¢eSü Hm¡L¡u HL¢V f¢laÉJ² h¡s£ M¤y¢Su¡ Aœ jÇHe¡mu−L S¡e¡C−a hm¡ k¡C−a f¡−l ®Lee¡ LÀ¡h ¢L dl−el h¡s£ 
Q¡u a¡q¡J a¡q¡−cl S¡e¡e fË−u¡Se z 
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
2/11/1982 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
60z flha£Ñ−a ®cM¡ k¡C−a−R ®k EJ² pÇf¢š S®~eL ®~puc h¢cEl lqj¡e c¢mm ew 3686 a¡w- 4/9/84 a¡¢l−M 
Se¡h¡ M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡−jl Ae¤L−̈m ¢hH²u L−le (fªx 166-177) Hhw ac¡e¤p¡−lEJ² M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡−jl e¡−j e¡jS¡l£ 
flQ¡ J M¡Se¡ fËc¡e Ll¡ qC−a−R (fx fª 164-165) z ¢L¿¹ Cq¡ AaÉ¿¹ p−ecq fËhZ ®k EJ² pÇf¢š lCQ¡ B¢SS 
®hN−jl ¢eLV qC−a ¢Li¡−h ®~puc h¢cEl lqj¡−el ¢eLV qÙ¹¡¿¹¢la q−u−R a¡q¡l ®L¡e fËj¡e e¡C z HR¡s¡ L 
a¡¢mL¡i¨J² h¡s£l hÉ¡f¡−l p¢WL ¢pcd¡−¿¹l SeÉ   Court or SettlementHl ¢eLV ®fËlZ Ll¡ k¡C−a f¡−l z 
ü¡x c¤Öf¡WÉ 
24/8/86 
(Bold and underlined, emphasized) 

  

41. From the aforesaid notes and the other materials of the abandoned property file the 

following facts are revealed: 

a) The original file of abandoned property relating to the suit property is not 

traceable/missing for the period starting from 1972 up to part of 1977. 

b) Raisa got possession of part of the suit property i.e. the shops on 25.04.1982 and 

30.04.1982 respectively through renewing monthly rental agreements dated 25.04.1982 and 

30.04.1982, vide rental agreement dated 25.04.1982 between Raisa and M/S. Globe Battery 

Works and rental agreements dated 30.04.1982 between Raisa and M/S. Jatiya Shahitya 

Prakashani, M/S. Elora, M/S. Hakim Electronics, M/S. Dacca Electric and Lift works, M/S. 

Kajal Enterprise after release of the suit property. So, she did not get possession in any part of 

the suit property till 25.04.1982/30.04.1982 after release of the suit property from the list of 

abandoned properties. 

c) Raisa did not get possession of the rest part of the suit property i.e. the building from 

Shantinagar Club at least till 02.11.1982.  

d) She filed several applications to the abandoned property authority initially for 

delivery of possession of the entire suit property and then for delivery of possession of the 

rest part of the suit property, which was in possession of Shantinagar Club. 

e) The Sports and Cultural Division applied for re-allotment of the said building or any 

other house in favour of the Shantinagar Club.   

f) Shantinagar Club did not hand over possession in favour of alleged Raisa, at least up 

to 02.11.1982. 
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g)  Raisa, in none of her applications vide letters of Raisa from 1977 up to 22.05.1982 

claimed that she had entered into an agreement to transfer the suit property to Badiur on 

11.09.1969 or that she had transferred the suit property to Badiur at any time.  

h) There was no evidence before Abandoned Property Authority as to how Badiur got 

the suit property vide Note No.60 dated 24.08.1986 of the abandoned property file. 

 

42. In the plaint Khadiza claimed that Raisa firstly executed a bainapatra dated 

11.09.1969 in favour of Badiur and then transferred the suit property in favour of Badiur on 

15.01.1982 and handed over possession to him. But the Government Official record and 

statement of D.W.15-Md. Monsur Rahman clearly show that Raisa could not have transferred 

her leasehold right/any other right or handed over possession of the suit property to Badiur at 

the time of so called transfer on 15.01.1982 for the reasons that: 

1) Raisa herself prayed for handing over possession of the entire suit property admitting 

that she was not in possession of the suit property before and after 15.01.1982 and till 

25.04.1982.  

2) She, in her application dated 22.02.1982 stated that since release of her property 

(12.01.1982) from the list of abandoned properties, one month has elapsed but no step was 

taken to deliver possession to her.  

3) Raisa in her application dated 22.05.1982 stated that Shantinagar Club did not hand 

over possession to her although she got possession of the other shops . 

4) Raisa never claimed to have executed any bainapatra on 11.09.1969 or at any time in 

favour of Badiur or that she transferred her leasehold or any other right to Badiur at any time, 

and rather she filed series of applications for delivery of possession in her favour even after 

her (Raisa) so-called transfer to Badiur on 15.01.1982. 

5) D.W.15 Md. Monsur Rahman, Kanungo of Deputy Commissioners’ Office in his 

cross-examination statedthat, 

”M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡−jl e¡−j m£S eh¡ue L¢lu¡ −cC 3/7/85 Cw a¡¢lMz Bjl¡ 30 hvp−ll SeÉ m£S ¢cu¡¢R z ®ju¡c 
2014 fkÑ¿¹ ®ju¡c hmhv B−R z”  

 He further stated that, 

”lCp¡ A¡¢SS e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š transfer Hl SeÉ Ae¤j¢a mu e¡C  a−h ®~puc h¢cEl lqj¡e ¢hH²£l Ae¤j¢a mu 
l¡Cp¡ B¢S−Sl f−r 19/4/82Cw a¡¢l−M z h¢cEl lqj¡−el hl¡h−l c¢mm qu 15/1/82Cw a¡¢l−M AbÑ¡v plL¡−ll 
Ae¤j¢a f¡Ju¡l f§−hÑC e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š ¢hH²£ L¢lu¡ ®cu z-------------” 

6) So, Raisa herself never obtained any permission from the Government Khas Mohal 

authority to transfer her leasehold right to Badiur at any time, and  

7) Admittedly, permission from the Government was/is necessary for transfer of 

leasehold right to anyone in view of the provisions of Government Estate Manual, 1958. 

 

43. It be mentioned that the original deed of alleged transfer of the suit property dated 

15.01.1982 by Raisa to Badiur was neither produced before the abandoned property authority 

nor before any Government Office or before any Court. 

 

44. Khadiza had tried to establish a new case by examining D.W.1 Awlad Hossain 

Chowdhury, a witness who deposed on her behalf. This witness stated that the original 

document of transfer by Raisa to Badiur is deposited with a bank at the time of marking a 

certified copy of the deed as exhibit M1(5) with objection. But this witness at the time of 

marking exhibit M1(5) did not mention the name of the bank. He also stated that Nirman took 

loan from the bank after 1984 without mentioning the date of taking loan.  

 

45. Further, the Bank Officer, D.W.3 Kazi Md. Adam Ali stated that the loan was taken 

from the bank,  the present name of which is Eastern Bank Ltd and earlier known as BCCI 
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Bank. From statement of this witness it also appears that he brought a certified copy and a 

photocopy was submitted before the Court and not the original one. D. W.3 the Bank Official 

did not say that the original deed was missing from the bank. Moreover, no other 

documentary evidence was/is placed before the Court to show that the original document was 

missing and that any action was taken by Khadiza over missing of this document by the bank 

or by any other means. 

 

46. At the time of hearing, this Court inquired about the whereabouts of this original 

document and Khadiza’s learned Senior Advocate replied that theoriginal document is 

missing from the bank. 

 

47. Therefore, it appears that Khadiza allegedly mortgaged the suit property for the 

purpose of taking loan from a bank but neither the mortgaged deed nor the original document 

was ever produced before the court or the Government authorities. The new case about 

mortgage of suit property to the bank is beyond pleadings as no such case was mentioned in 

the plaint, even by way of amendment. It appears that Khadiza suppressed a vital information 

in the plaint and did not bring this new case in the plaint by way of amendment. Perhaps it is 

due to the fact that she did not obtain any permissionfrom the Government before mortgaging 

the suit property to the bank and that too by using a fictitious document. It is evident that 

Khadiza intentionally avoided toproduce original document so that Raisa’s signature could 

not be compared.  

 

48. In the above circumstances, it is crystal clear that even if we consider that Raisa was a 

genuine person and the suit property was lawfully released by abandoned property authority 

in her favour, in such case also plaintiff Khadiza failed to prove   Raisa’s transfer of the suit 

property to Badiur. 

 

49. In consideration of the original file of abandoned property authority and non-

production of the original deed of so-called transfer by Raisa to Badiur, we are fully 

convinced that Raisa never sold/transfer the suit property to Badiur for which the original 

document was not produced before the Government authorities or in any Court. Further, 

Khadiza claimed that her leasehold right was extended for 30 years but she prayed for 

declaration of her 16 annas title to the suit property again as a fraudulent device to grab the 

Government valuable property by practicing fraud upon the Court. 

  

50. It be mentioned that all the contesting parties claimed that Raisa never transferred her 

right to the suit property to Badiur and the so-called deed of transfer is a forged document. 

 

51. Since, Raisa’s transfer of the suit property to Badiur is not proved, Khadiza has not 

acquired any legal/valid right to the suit property, leasehold or otherwise, through her 

purchase from Badiur as Badiur himself had no legal right to transfer it to anyone. Thus, it is 

evident that the so called deed of transfer by Raisa to Badiur is a fraudulent/ forged/ fictitious 

and collusive document created with the sole purpose to grab the valuable Government 

property. 

 

52. It is evident that Khadiza in collusion with Badiur and some other persons obtained a 

deed of transfer in her favour from Badiur, who himself had no legal right or authority to 

transfer it. Khadiza managed to extend the leasehold right for 30 years in her favour by 

fraudulent means in active collaboration/collusion with the Government Officials.   

 



14 SCOB [2020] AD Firoza Noor Khan and others Vs. Raisa Aziz Begum and others     (Zinat Ara, J.)    138 
 

53. It is very unfortunate to note that the suit property, a valuable property situated at the 

heart of the Capital of Bangladesh measuring at least twelve khatas vide statement of the 

witnesses was grabbed by Khadiza with the help of some dishonest Government officials, 

who were/are the protectors of the Government properties. 

 

54. From the beginning till the end, the Government Officials, both abandoned property 

authority as well as the office of the Deputy Collector, Dhaka played a heinous role in this 

matter including filing of written statements in various suits changing Governments initial 

stand that the suit property is an abandoned property. Moreover, several civil litigations were 

going on but without waiting for the result of those litigations, the suit property was released 

from the list of abandoned property and lease extension was given to Khadiza-that too 

illegally without verifying if Raisa transferred the suit property to Badiur. 

 

55. It be mentioned that the original file of abandoned property was/is not 

traceable/missing till date. The said file contained all notes and all records/documents from 

1972 up to part of the year 1977. Thus, whether Raisa is a genuine person or not that could 

not be ascertained as all the documents containing her original signatures from 1972 up to 

part of 1977 are missing from the record. Therefore, the so called Raisa might be a fake 

person. Possibly, for that reason she was not examined as a witness in the court by Khadiza 

or any other parties in the suits. 

 

56. It needs be mentioned that from the materials on record it appears that so called Raisa 

filed Misc. Case No. 34 of 1979 for setting aside the ex-parte decree obtained by Jamila 

Khatun previously against her. In the said case, in her deposition, she stated that,-  

“HC O−ll j−dÉ ®h¡lM¡ J hÉ¡N Bj¡lz HC h¡¢sl ®q¡¢ôw eðl B¢j S¡¢e e¡z|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| B¢j 11/27 ew 
®q¡¢ôw L¡−u−c BSj ®l¡−X b¡¢La¡jz a¡l B−N ¢jlf¤l b¡¢La¡jz HMe HC h¡¢s−a b¡¢Lz|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| Bš²¡l 
Bmj Bj¡l i¡C ¢ae hRl B−N f¡¢LÙ¹¡−e Q¢mu¡ ¢Nu¡−Rez Bj¡l ®R−m ®j−ul¡ pLm Ll¡¢Q e¡¢Rl¡h¡c B−R, a¡−cl 
p¡−b 4 hRl d−l −cM¡ p¡r¡v e¡Cz |||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| HM¡−e B¢j 15/20 ¢ce k¡hv B¢R z Hl B−N L¡−u−c 
BSj ®l¡−X b¡¢La¡jz Bj¡l l¡æ¡-h¡æ¡l q¡¢s f¡¢am B−Rz  VÊ¡wˆ R¤V−Lp B−Rz Bj¡l q¡¢s f¡¢am 11/27 ew L¡−u−c 
BSj ®l¡−X B−Rz B¢j HM¡−eC B¢Rz ®lne L¡XÑ e¡Cz H hÉ¡f¡−l Bj¡l p¡r£ e¡Cz |||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| L¢jne 
Blñ qJu¡l ¢LR¤L¡m B−N ®h¡lM¡ i¡¢e¢VhÉ¡N pq  HM¡−e Y¥¢Lu¡¢Rz”  

 

57. This so-called Raisa was examined in Misc. Case No. 34 of 1979 on commission and 

on question by the Advocate Commissioner- 

 “fËnÀx Bfe¡l ®L¡e pe¡š² ¢Qq² B−R ¢Le¡? Bf¢šj§mLz Ex p¡r£ Ešl ®cu e¡Cz” Moreover, she 

herself admitted that, 

 “B¢j HM¡−eC B¢Rz ®lne L¡XÑ e¡Cz HC hÉ¡f¡−l Bj¡l p¡r£ e¡Cz”  

 

58. It clearly indicates that the person deposed in the court in miscellaneous case may not 

be actual Raisa, as evidently she came to the place where the commission was held on the 

same day and she had no cookeries in the house where commission was held and she refused 

to disclose her identifying mark, which was very much vital. After her examination on 

Commission on 29.07.1979, Suit No.483 of 1974 (filed by Jamila) was restored to its file and 

number upon allowing the miscellaneous case. But Raisa never appeared before the trial court 

to contest the said suit. From Note No.28 of the abandoned property file, it appears that Raisa 

appeared, but how the concerned officer knew her or who identified her is not mentioned 

therein.Therefore, from the statement of so-called Raisa and abandoned property file, it 

appears that there is every likely hood that she may not be a genuine person.  
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59. Even if we presume that Khadiza was in possession of the suit property, her 

possession was illegal for the reasons discussed hereinbefore. Thus, the possession of 

Khadiza in the suit property, if there be any, was illegal possession in the Government 

property.  

 

60. Moreover, D.W.2 Md. Selim in his examination-in-chief stated that, 

“j¡¢mL qh¡l ¢c−e cMm ¢e−u ®L¡w Hl p¡Ce−h¡XÑ V¡e¡C z”  

 

61. D.W.1Md. Awlad Hossain in his examination-in-chief stated that, 

“ˆmq` ew`Di ingvb Dnv‡Z †fvM `LjKvi _vKve ’̄vq4/9/1984 Cw a¡¢l−M HL¢V ®l¢Sx p¡g-Lhm¡ c¢mmj§−m 
¢hH²£ L−l cMm M¡¢cS¡Bmjvg−L h¤T¡Cu¡ ‡`bz”  

 

62. But at the time ofcross-examination D.W.1 stated that, “4/9/1984 Cw a¡¢l−M h¡¢ce£l e¡−j 
M¢lc¡ ®l¢Sx quz La ¢ce fl h¡¢ce£ ®M¡−cS¡ Cpm¡j e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢šl cM−m k¡u a¡ pÈlZ e¡C, a−h ¢LR¤ ¢c−el j−dÉ 
cM−m k¡uz”  

 

63. Therefore, there is also contradiction about the date on which Badiur handed over 

possession to Khadiza. 

 

64. It appears that though the Government machineries are not willing to protect the suit 

property but the learned Additional Attorney General pointed out all the facts before us and 

made submissions that in these matters i.e.the appeals/CPLA the Court must exercise its 

power as provided in article 104 of the Constitution for doing complete justice, to protect a 

valuable Government property, a property of the People of Bangladesh.  

 

65. Any property owned by the Government is the property of the People’s of the 

Republic of Bangladesh and the citizens of this country are the actual owners of such 

property. Therefore, no one can dispose of valuable Government properties at his/their sweet 

will to anyone else unlawfully. 

 

66. We have already seen that Khadiza failed to prove her vendor’s title/leasehold right to 

the suit property and, as such, the extension of lease in her favour by certain unscrupulous 

Government officials is also collusive and fraudulent. However, Khadiza's illegal extended 

lease period for 30 years has also expiredmeanwhile.  

 

67. On Khadiza’s case, the trial court in consideration of deposition of Khadiza’s witness 

Md. Awlad Hossain Chowdhery and evidence on record decided as under:  

“ Aœ p¡r£ BlJ E−õM L−l ®k, e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š 12/01/82 Cw a¡¢l−M l¡Cp¡ B¢SS hl¡h−l Abandoned 

property Hl a¡¢mL¡ qC−a Ahj¤š² Ll¡ qu za¡q¡ q−m e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š  Abandoned property Hl a¡¢mL¡i§š² 
qJu¡l fl m£S c¢m−ml Validity Bl b¡¢L−a f¡−l e¡z a¡q¡ R¡s¡ ®~puc h¢cEl lqj¡e Hl ¢eLV plL¡−ll f§hÑ¡e¤j¢a 
R¡s¡ e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š ¢hœ²£ Ll¡u ®~puc h¢cEl lqj¡−el e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š−a ®L¡e fËL¡l m£−Sl üaÄJ pª¢ø qu e¡Cz 
flha£Ñ−a M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡j 04/09/84 Cw a¡¢l−M e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š M¢lc L−lz e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡j M¢lc L¢l−mJ 
Eq¡−a  m£−Sl üaÄ pª¢ØV qC−h e¡ L¡lZ h¢cEl lqj¡e Hl Efl m£−Sl üaÄ pª¢ØV qCu¡¢Rm e¡za¡R¡s¡ M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡j 
BlJ E−õM L−l ®k, e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š−a a¡q¡l üaÄ J cMm B−R j−jÑ ®O¡oZ¡ Q¡¢qu¡−Rz M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡j e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š−a 
hs−S¡l m£−Sl üaÄ pª¢ØV qCu¡−R j−jÑ c¡h£ L¢l−a f¡−lz ¢L¿º M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡j e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š plL¡−ll ¢eLV qC−a 
f¤el¡u m£S fË¡ç qCu¡−R Eq¡ ®cJu¡e£ 224/97 ew j¡jm¡l ®L¡b¡J E−õM L−l e¡z a¡q¡ R¡s¡ M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡j e¡¢mn£ 
pÇf¢š qC−a ®hcMm qCu¡−R j−jÑ ü£L¡l Ll¡u M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡−jl hl¡h−l e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š h¡h−c ÙÛ¡u£ ¢e−od¡‘¡l ¢Xœ²£ 
f¡C−a f¡−l e¡z a¡q¡ R¡s¡ M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡j Eš² ®j¡LŸj¡u plL¡−ll L¡R ®b−L f¤el¡u m£S NËq−Zl ¢hou Bl¢S−a e¡ 
Bp¡u M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡−jl hl¡h−l m£S üaÄ ®O¡oZ¡lJ p¤−k¡N e¡Cz g−m M¡¢cS¡ Cpm¡j LaÑªL c¡−ul£ ®cJu¡e£ 224/97 
ew ®j¡LŸj¡¢V BCeax Q¢m−a f¡−l e¡ z ”  
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(Bold and undelined by us) 

 

68. In the facts and circumstances, as discussed hereinbefore, we are of the view that the 

trial court correctly dismissed the suit filed by Khadiza so far as it relates to declaration of her 

right, title to the suit property, khas possession and permanent injunction. However, the High 

Court Division erroneously held that Raisa with the permission of the Government 

transferred the suit property to Badiur although Government witness D.W.15 Md. Mousur 

Rahman in cross-examination clearly stated,  

“l¡Cp¡ B¢SS e¡¢mn¡ pÇf¢š ¢hH²£l Ae¤j¢a mu e¡C z”  

 

69. High Court Division without considering the evidence as discussed hereinbefore, 

erroneously allowed Khadiza’s appeal as a whole, but curiously enough without declaring 

any title to or leasehold right of Khadiza in the suit property but simply directing Waziuddin 

to handover possession of the suit property to Khadiza within 6 months from the date of 

receiving copy of the judgment. 

 

70. Now, let us turn our eyes to the fate of the appeals filed by the heirs of Noor 

Mohammad Khan, he being dead. 

 

71. On the suit filed by Noor Mohammad Khan, the trial Court decided as under: 

“−cJu¡e£ 113/84 ew ®j¡LŸj¡u h¡c£ e¤l ®j¡q¡Çjc My¡e EJ² e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š h¡hc h¡ue¡ Q¥¢J² L−l 23/7/69 Cw 
a¡¢l−M z e¤l ®j¡q¡Çjc My¡e EJ² a¡¢l−M 1ew ¢hh¡c£ l¡Cp¡ B¢S−Sl p¢qa h¡ue¡ Q¥¢J² L−l z ¢L¿º l¡Cp¡ B¢SS e¡¢mn£ 
pÇf¢š plL¡−ll L¡−R ®b−L 1959 Cw p¡−m m£S NËqe L−l z ü£L«a j−aC ®L¡e plL¡l£ pÇf¢š m£S NËqe L¢l−m EJ² 
pÇf¢š m£S NËq£a¡ plL¡−ll f¤hÑ¡e¤j¢a mCu¡C qÙ¹¡¿¹l L¢l−a f¡−lz ¢L¿º e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š e¤l ®j¡q¡Çjc My¡−el p¢qa h¡ue¡ 
Q¥¢J² L¢lh¡l f¤−hÑ plL¡−ll Ae¤j¢a mCu¡ c¢mm ®l¢S¢ØVÊ L¢lu¡ ®cu¡l Lb¡ E−õM B−R z EJ² h¡ue¡ Q¥¢J²l hJ²hÉ 
Ae¤k¡u£ plL¡−ll Ae¤j¢a e¡ mCu¡C e¡¢mn£ pÇf¢š h¡hc h¡ue¡ Q¥¢J² L¢lu¡¢Rm z g−m l¡Cp¡ B¢SS plL¡−ll Ae¤j¢a 
e¡ ®eJu¡u EJ² h¡ue¡ Q¥¢J²¢V m£S c¢m−ml naÑ mwOe L¢lu¡ pÇf¡ce Ll¡u EJ² m£S ¢XX Bc¡m−a  Executable 
qC−a f¡−l e¡ z” 

 

72. Noor Mohammad filed Title Suit No.364 of 1982, renumbered as 113 of 1984, for 

Specific Performance of Contract against Raisa on the basis of a Bainapatra dated 23.07.1969 

as well as a deed of novation dated 10.07.1972, renewing the previous agreement for sale. He 

also prayed for khas possession of the suit property. Khan’s heirs examined several witnesses 

to substantiate their case. 

 

73. Their first witness is Shakawat Hossain Chowdhury (D.W.9), who deposed in favour 

of heirs of Noor Mohammad Khan. This witness stated that Raisa is the owner of the suit 

property by virtue of a deed dated 11.12.1957 executed by Ashini. Raisa executed a 

Bainapatra in favour of Noor Mohammad on 23.07.1969 and he produced copy of the said 

Bainapatra (exhibit-B, with objection). He claimed himself to be present at the time of 

Bainapatra, but according to him he was only 12/13 years old in the year 1970.  

 

74. During cross-examination this witness mentioned that, 

”Avgvi Rb¥ mb Abygvb 1958 m‡b| 1970 mv‡j ¯̂vaxbZv hy× ïiæ nq| ZLb Avgvi eqm Abygvb 12/13 eQi|" 

He stated in his cross-examination that,  

“Bj¡l c¡¢MmL«a HL¢S¢hV XL¥−jeV H l¡CR¡ B¢S−Sl cÙ¹Ma ®L¡eV¡ Cw−l¢S J ®L¡eV¡ EcÑ¤−a B−R z HC 
ü¡rl…¢m lCR¡ B¢S−Sl a¡ ®cM¡−e¡l j−a¡ ®L¡e Abl¡CSX cÙ¹Ma c¡¢Mm L¢l e¡C z” 

(Bold and undelined, emphasised) 
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75. Therefore, this witness was only a boy of 11 years on the date of first Bainapatra. So, 

his case that he was present at the time of Bainapatra is not believable.In his deposition he did 

not explain why Raisa put her signatures in Urdu at the time of executing the Bainapatra 

dated 23.04.1969, but put her signatures in English on the alleged deed of novation dated 

21.01.1977. Further, it appears that he is not an witness of the bainapatra. 

 

76. Their next witness is Bidhan Chandra Podder(D.W.10). Relevant part of his 

statements are as under: 

“e§l  ®j¡q¡jÈc M¡e Hl p¡−b 1969 p−e l¡Cp¡ B¢S−Sl HL¢V h¡ue¡fœ quz 15,000/- V¡L¡ h¡ue¡ ®cuz a¡¢lM 
j−e e¡Cz HC h¡ue¡ f−œ B¢j p¡r£ ¢Rm¡jz fËcx 13, ®a B¢j p¡r£ ¢qp¡−h 4ew œ²¢j−L cÙ¹Ma L¢lu¡¢Rz HC ®pC 
ü¡rl fËcx 13/1 z Bj¡l p¡−b p¡r£ ¢qp¡−h ®j¡q¡jÈc Bm£ J S¡¢Ll ¢Rmz AeÉ S−el e¡j h−m e¡C,  l¡Cp¡ B¢SS 
Ec¤Ñ−a  c¿¹Ma ¢cu¡−Re Bj¡l p¡j−ez fËcx 13 Cw−lS£ V¡Cf Ll¡z” 

 

77. During cross-examination he stated that,  

“l¡Cp¡ B¢SS M¡e−L 1969 p¡−m fËbj ®c¢Mz fËbj h¡ue¡l a¡¢l−Ml B−N l¡Cp¡ B¢SS−L ¢Q¢ea¡j e¡z fËbj 
e¡ue¡ qu 23/7/1969 a¡¢l−M zHC h¡ue¡ qu 1127 BSj ®l¡X ®j¡q¡jÈcf¤l, Y¡L¡uz I ¢WL¡e¡u l¡Cp¡ B¢SS M¡e 
hph¡p Llaz h¡ue¡fœ ®L j¤p¡¢hc¡ L−l h¢m−a f¡¢l e¡z h¡ue¡fœ Cw−lS£−a ®mM¡ quz  h¡ue¡f−œ lCp¡ B¢SS EcÑ¤−a 
pC L−l z 2/1 k¡q¡l Cw−lS£−a J pC L¢lu¡−Rz B¢j EŸ§Ñ fs−a f¡¢l e¡z  B¢j ®j¡V 7¢V c¢m−m p¡r£ qCz HC 7 V¡ 
c¢mmC h¡ue¡fœ c¢mm J l¢ncz ---------------- 

(Bold and underlined by us) 

        --fËbj h¡ue¡l pju ®hm¡ ¢aeV¡u BSj ®l¡−X k¡Cz I ¢ce ¢Lh¡l ¢Rm pÈle e¡Cz e¤l ®j¡q¡jÈc M¡e Bj¡−L 
¢eu¡ k¡uz lCp¡ B¢S−Sl ü¡j£l e¡j h¢m−a f¢¡l e¡z a¡l ü¡j£−L ®c¢M e¡Cz------------ 

h¢cEl lqj¡e fËbj h¡ue¡u p¡r£ ¢Rm ¢Le¡ S¡¢e e¡zfËbj h¡ue¡fœ pÇf¡c−el pju 4/5 Se p¡r£ ¢Rmz LuSe 
p¡r£ pC L−l h¢m−a f¡¢l e¡z e§l ®j¡q¡jÈc M¡−el Ù»£ Bj¡l ¢fa¡−L h¡h¡ X¡L−aez 

B¢j Ec¤Ñ¤ h¡ Cw−lS£ f¢s−a f¡¢l e¡z---- B¢j −k pLm c¢m−m p¡r£ B¢R B¢j Eq¡l ®L¡eV¡C B¢j f¢s−a f¡¢l e¡ 
Hhw Eq¡l AbÑ S¡¢e e¡z Bj¡l h¡s£ Y¡L¡uz e¤l ®j¡q¡jÈ−cl h¡s£ −e¡u¡M¡m£z B¢j ®k pLm document-H pC L¢lu¡¢R 
Eq¡ ®L V¡Cf L−l h¡ L−h ®L¡b¡u V¡Cf L−l h¢m−a f¡¢l e¡z  

l¡Cp¡ B¢SS fcÑ¡en£e j¢qm¡ ¢Rmz fËbj h¡ue¡f−œl pju p¡L¡Ju¡−al hup 12/13 hRl ¢Rm z ph …−m¡ c¢m−m 
B¢j p¡r£ ¢qp¡−h f−l pC L¢lu¡¢R z” 

(Bold and underlined by us) 

 

78. This witness did not know Raisa and only seen her on the date of first bainapatra. 

Therefore, his evidence that Raisa executed the Bainapatra is of no value as he did not know 

Raisa. 

 

79. Next witness of this suit is Md. Zakir Hossain (D.W.11). He stated that he had seen 

Raisa Aziz only one day and that Raisa Aziz put her signature in his presence. 

 

80. During cross-examination he stated that, “23/7/69 a¡¢l−M l¡Cp¡ B¢S−Sl hup 35/40 hRl 
¢Rm z B¢j a¡l j¤M pÇf¤eÑ ®c¢M e¡C z I pju l¡Cp¡ B¢S−Sl pÅ¡j£ Ef¢Øqa ¢Rm ¢Le¡ h¢m−a f¡¢l e¡ z l¡Cp¡ B¢S−Sl 
®L¡e i¡C Ef¢Øqa ¢Rm ¢Le¡ h¢m−a f¡¢l e¡ z…… paÉ ®k h¡ue¡f−œ Bj¡−cl L¡−l¡ cÙ¹M−al ¢e−Q ®L¡e a¡¢lM E−õM 
e¡C z” 

(Bold and underlined, emphasised) 

 

81. Thus, it appears that this witness has not seen Raisa on any other day except one day 

and on the date of execution of bainapatra dated 23.07.1969, he did not see her full face. So, 

evidence of this witness that Raisa Aziz herself executed the original Binapatra is of no value, 

as he did not know Raisa, who was a pardansin lady according to the previous witness 

Bidhan Chandra.  
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82. Moreover, in the original Bainapatra, signature of Raisa is in Urdu but in the deed of 

renewal of agreement all the signatures are in English. No reason was mentioned by the 

witnesses as to why the signatures in the deed of novation were in English. The money 

receipts could not also be proved in this suit. 

 

83. In the above circumstances, it is crystal clear that the witnesses of this suit could not 

prove that the original Bainapatra was executed by Raisa herself for the reasons discussed 

earlier. 

 

84. Thus, it is evident that Noor Mohammad’s heirs failed to prove that it was Raisa who 

executed the original Bainapatra on 23.07.1969. Since, the case of execution of original 

Bainapatra by Raisa falls through, the case of novation as continuity of the original 

Bainapatra is of no value. 

 

85. Considering the totality of the evidence on record, we are fully convinced that Raisa 

did not execute any Bainapatra or deed of novation in favour of Noor Mohammad at any 

time. So, his case was lawfully dismissed by the trial Court and the appeal was also lawfully 

dismissed. However, the judgments for dismissal are not with cogent reasons. Both the 

Courts below ought to have discussed the evidenceon record and on the basis of the 

evidence,oral and documentary ought to have dismissed the suit/appeal of Noor 

Mohammad’s heirs.   

 

86. In view of the above, we find no merit in the appeal of Noor Mohammad Khan’s heirs 

so far as it relates to Civil Appeal No.31 of 2017. Thus, this appeal is liable to be dismissed. 

 

87. Now let us examine the merit of the appeal filed by Jamila Khatun, which arose out of 

Transfer Appeal No.10 of 2014andthe said appeal arose out of Title Suit No.483 of 1974. 

 

88. Jamila examined several witnesses in support of her case of execution of Bainapatra 

by Raisa on 20.01.1972. The trial Court dismissed the suit and High Court Division also 

dismissed/disallowed the appeal. 

 

89. Jamila’s witness P.W.1 Md. Ashfaq Ahmed is her husband and tadbirkarak of her 

suit. He proved the alleged Bainapatra in favour of Jamila dated 20.01.1972. He stated that,  

“EJ² h¡ue¡ f−œ 1ew ¢hh¡c£l pC (®Rs¡) i¡C ®~puc h¢cEl lqj¡e, BSq¡l E¢cce Bq−jc, ®M¡l−nc Bq−jc, 
(−Rs¡) ®q¡−pe CaÉ¡¢c p¡r£ ¢qp¡−h pC L−le z h¡ue¡f−œ fl 1ew ¢hh¡c£¢e e¡x pÇf¢š k¡ha£u c¢mm¡¢c h¡c£¢el ¢eLV 
qÙ¹¡¿¹l L−l z …………………1ew ¢hh¡¢ce£ a¡q¡l j¤m V¡C−Vm ¢XX Bj¡−cl−L fËc¡e L−l e¡C z ®Lee¡ aMe Eq¡ ac¡¢e¿¹e 
Hp,¢X,J, (p¡Eb) Hl ®L¡−VÑ c¡¢Mm ¢Rm z…………………” 

   (Bold and underlined by us) 

 

90.  This witness clearly stated that,  

“h¡ue¡ pÇf¡c−el ¢ce B¢j, h¡¢ce£l ü¡j£, lCp¡ B¢SS, a¡l i¡C ®~puc h¢cu¡l lqj¡e, ®M¡l−nc, BSq¡l E¢cce 
Bq−jc, ®a¡g¡−SSm ®q¡−pe Ef¢Øqa ¢R−me z h¡ue¡l Lb¡h¡aÑ¡l ¢ce l¡CR¡ B¢SS, a¡l i¡C h¢cu¡l lqj¡e Ef¢Øqa 
¢R−me z”  

 

91. P.W.2 Azhar Uddin Ahmed is the brother of Jamila’s husband, who is a witness to the 

deed.This witness admits that other witnesses of the Bainapatra, named Khorshed Anwar 

is/was also his brother and Tofazzal Hossain was/is an employee in his brother’s shop. He 

statedthat, 



14 SCOB [2020] AD Firoza Noor Khan and others Vs. Raisa Aziz Begum and others     (Zinat Ara, J.)    143 
 

 “5ew hPNhec¤ H¢i¢eEl Øq¡−e kMe h¡ue¡fœ qu aMe B−nf¡−nl l¦−j ®m¡LSe ¢Rm z f¡nÄÑha£Ñ ®m¡LSe h¡ue¡l 
pju Ef¢Øqa ¢R−me e¡ z” 

 

92. P.W.3 Khorshed Ahmed is another brother of D.W.1. He statedthat,  

“5ew hPNhed¤ H¢i¢eEl AeÉ¡eÉ L−r ®m¡LSe b¡L−a f¡−l z EJ² L−rl ®m¡LSe−L h¡ue¡l pju X¡¢L e¡C z” 

 

93. The last witness of Jamila relating to Bainapatra is P.W.4. P.W.4 Tofazzal Hossain 

stated that,“l¡Cp¡−L h¡ue¡ f−œl ¢ce ®b−LC ¢Q¢e z B¢j h¡ue¡ f−œl ¢ce Ef¢Øqa ¢Rm¡j z B¢j h¡ue¡f−œ ü¡rl 
L¢lu¡¢R z HC ®pC cÙ¹Ma (fËcx 1/N) z h¡¢ce£ J ¢hh¡c£¢e kMe h¡ue¡f−œ cÙ¹Ma L−l aMe Ef¢Øqa ¢Rm¡j z“ 

 

94. At the time of cross-examination, hedeposed that,“l¡CR¡−L h¡ue¡l ¢ceC fËbj ®c¢Mu¡¢Rz 
h¡ue¡f−œl ¢c−e l¡Cp¡ B¢S−Sl ü¡j£ S£¢ha ¢Rm e¡ z fËbj p¢q ®cu ®~puc h¢cEl lqj¡e S¢j L−h ®hQ¡ ®Le¡l Lb¡ 
qu S¡¢e e¡ z” 

   (Bold and underlined by us) 

 

95. Thus, from the statements of P.Ws.1, 2 and 3 it appears that they are full brothers and 

P.W.1 is the husband of Jamila. So, they are all very close relativesof Jamila and are 

interested witnesses. P.W.4 the sole witness, who is not a relative of Jamila, is an employee 

of Jamila’s husband. This witness clearly stated that he had seen Raisa firstly on the date of 

execution of Bainapatra. Thus, the solitary witness, who is not a relative of Jamila, did not 

know Raisa prior to execution of bainapatra.  So, he had no personal knowledge whether the 

person who executed Bainapatra was infact Raisa or not.  

 

96. In view of the evidence on record as discussed, it is evident that Jamila could not 

prove her case about execution of Bainapatra by Raisa herself by any independent witness so 

as to get a decree for Specific Performance of Contract relating to the suit property. 

Therefore, her suit for Specific Performance of Contract was correctly dismissed by the trial 

Court and affirmed by the appellate Court. However, both the Courts below did not consider 

the oral evidence of the witnesses in detail and dismissed the suit/the appeal for some other 

reasons as discussed.  

 

97. In the above circumstances, we find no merit in Jamila’s appeal being Civil Appeal 

No.30 of 2017. Therefore, this appeal is also liable to be dismissed. 

 

98. Waziuddin has not preferred any appeal against the decree in favour of Khadiza. 

However, Noor Mohammad Khan’s heirs have challenged the judgmentand decree passed in 

favour of Khadiza in Transfer Appeal No.08 of 2014 by filing a CPLA, which resulted in 

Civil Appeal No.32 of 2017. 

 

99. On the other hand, Jamila Khatun filed Title Suit No.66 of 1990 for cancellation of 

sale deed as well as lease extension deed in favour of Khadiza. The said suit as well as the 

appeal being Transfer Appeal No.10 of 2014, were both dismissed by the trial Court and the 

appellate Court respectively. Wherefrom, Jamila filed CPLA No.4232 of 2018.  The suits for 

Specific Performance of Contract filed by Noor Mohammad (being dead his heirs) and by 

Jamila were dismissed and the appeals against the said judgments and decrees were 

disallowed. We have also found no merit in Civil Appeal No.31 of 2017 and Civil Appeal 

No.30 of 2017.  

 

100. Ordinarily, in such scenario, it is not necessary to consider the appeal of the heirs of 

Noor Mohammad Khan and the CPLA of Jamila but for the observations and decisions made 
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hereinbefore on Khadiza’s case, we find that Khadiza miserably failed to prove her valid title 

to or leasehold right in the suit property. As Khadiza failed to prove her case and Waziuddin 

is not now in the picture, it is necessary to consider the merit of Civil Appeal No.32 of 2017 

and CPLA No.4232 of 2018 in the unusualfacts of the matters. 

 

101. We have already seen that Khadiza could not prove her case and, therefore, she was 

not entitled to have a decree in her favour and the trial Court correctly dismissed it, but her 

appeal was erroneously allowed by the High Court Division with decree of khas 

possession.Therefore, her suit for declaration of her 16 annas title to the suit property, 

recovery of possession and permanent injunction have to be dismissed due to the reasons as 

discussed. However, if Khadiza'ssuit is dismissed as a whole, in such case Waziuddin’sdecree 

for Specific Performance of Contract would come intooperation. Therefore, it is necessary to 

decide whether the decree in favour of Waziuddin is liable to be set aside for doing complete 

justice. 

 

102. In the above backdrop, let us now study Waziuddin’s case. 

 

103. Md. Waziuddin has been examined as D.W.7 in the trial Court. He stated that,“®j±¢ML 
h¡ue¡fœ 7/1/71 a¡w z  h¡ue¡ h¡hc 25,500/- V¡L¡ ®eu z ¢a¢e avh¡hc HL¢V V¡L¡l l¢nc ®cu z Eq¡−a H ®L Hj 
n¡j£j, HCQ ¢h lqj¡e, L¡S£ ®j¡x p¡Cc, je¤ N¡S£ z c¡œ£ j¡¢e ¢l¢p−V ü¡rl L−le z B¢j j¤m j¡¢e l¢nc c¡¢Mm 
L¢l−a¢R z Bf¢š pq z p¡r£−cl 3 Se j¡l¡ ®N−R z AeÉ S−el Mhl B¢j S¡¢e e¡ z” 

 

104. Thus, it appears that out of 4 witnesses,3 witnesses of the money receipt are dead 

and he does not know the whereabouts of the other witness. About the oral agreement, the 

money receipt was the most important evidence, but Waziuddinfailed to prove it by any 

independent witness. So, it appears that Waziuddin as defendant-appellant failed to prove that 

Raisa had entered into an oral agreement with him to transfer the suit property in his favour. 

Therefore, his suit being Title Suit No.541 of 1982 was legally dismissed by the trial Court 

but the High Court Division in F.A. No.283 of 1984 erroneously decreed the suit against 

Raisa for Specific Performance of Contract. As a result, Waziuddin got possession of the suit 

property through Court.  

 

105. In view of the above, the decree obtained by Waziuddin in F.A. No.23 of 1984 

appears to be a fraudulent decree as claimed by the Government, Khadiza, Jamila and the 

heirs of Noor Mohammad Khan.Perhaps due to this fact Waziuddin did not file any CPLA 

against the decree obtained by Khadiza. Further, Md. Waziuddin obtained the decree for 

specific performance of contract against Raisa. But the Government is the actual owner of the 

suit property, a Khas Mohal property. Therefore, Waziuddin cannot retain his possession 

against the Government. Moreover, Waziuddin did not deposit the entire consideration price 

as per direction of the Court within 90 days. So, for that reason also Md. Waziuddin’s decree 

in F.A. No.23 of 1984 is liable to be set-aside and the registered deed obtained by him 

through Court is liable to be cancelled.   

 

106. We are well aware of the fact that generally appellate Court is the final fact finding 

Court. But herein, the trial Court and appellate Court did not consider oral evidence led by 

the parties and it escaped the notice of the appellate Court that D.W.15 for the Government 

stated during cross-examination that Raisa did not obtain permission from the Government to 

transfer her right to Badiur, but the High Court Division decidedthe appeal on the basis of 

examination in chief of this witness without perusing the cross-examination of the 

witness.Moreover, the abandoned property file was not also before the trial Court or the 
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Court of appeal i.e. the High Court Division so as to consider it. Therefore, we had to 

examine and assess the entire evidence on record, oral anddocumentary, to ascertain the 

actual merit of the cases.  

 

107. In view of the discussions made hereinbefore, we are inclined to dispose of Civil 

Appeal No.32 of 2017 by setting aside the judgment and decree obtained by Md. Waziuddin 

in F.A. No.23 of 1984 and further disposing of CPLA No.4232 of 2018 filed by Jamila as 

Khadiza failed to prove her case.  

 

108. Khadiza could not prove her case but the appellate Court without considering the 

merit of the case allowed the appeal and decreed the suit in favour of Khadiza erroneously 

relating to her prayer for recovery of khas possession without considering her legal right.  

 

109. In fact the appeal was allowed by the High Court Division due to some unscrupulous 

Government Officials’ illegal and collusive activities in favour of Khadiza. 

 

110. From the materials on record, it appears that the suit property is a Government Khas 

Mohal property and all parties failed to prove their respective case and unlawful lease 

extension period of Khadiza already expired. Raisa’s lease period expired long before and she 

is not before us with any claim on the suit property. Therefore, the suit property is now a 

Khas Mohal property of the Government as the Abandoned Property Authority excluded it 

from the list of abandoned properties unlawfully and collusively. 

 

111. As the unlawful lease extension in favour of Khadiza expired meanwhile, we are of 

the view that Khadiza Islam is not entitled to get any further extension of her lease from the 

Government. She had no legal right for extension of Raisa’s leasehold right at any time. We 

are further of the view that the Government must take over actual/physical possession of the 

suit property from Waziuddin/Khadiza/the persons/person, whoever be in possession thereof 

within 60 days from the date of receiving the copy of this judgment in its present condition. 

 

112. It is a common knowledge that many Government Officials of various departments 

are situated on hired buildings. For this reason the Government has to bear huge expense for 

payment of rents. Therefore, it is our pious wish that the Government would retainthe 

valuable property i.e. the suit property, itself, which is situated at the heart of Dhaka by 

allotting the same to any Government Department or in the alternative the Government may 

construct a building for Government Departments/ Offices, so that this valuable property 

does not again fall into the hands of land/property grabbers with the help of some 

unscrupulous Government Officials. 

 

113. It be noted that it is not necessary to discuss the decisions as referred to by the 

learned Senior Advocates/Advocates for the contending parties during their respective 

arguments, since we have dealt with the matters on the basis of evidence on record, oral and 

documentary as well as the abandoned property file independently and the parties failed to 

prove their respective case to get the suit property.  

 

114. Before parting with the judgment, we would like to note that the power of this Court 

under article 104 of the Constitution is an extensive one though it is not used often or 

randomly. It is generally used for doing complete justice in any cause or matter pending 

before it in rare occasions in exceptional or extra-Ordinary cases for avoiding miscarriage of 

justice. To meet unwarranted and unpredicted exceptional situation this power is vested in 
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this Division for doing complete justice. Article 104 widens our hands so that this Division is 

not powerless in exceptional matters. The matters (appeals/CPLA) in our hands are matters 

requiring exercise of this power, to save a valuable property of the Government from the 

clutches of greedy land/property grabbers, that too with the active collaboration and help 

from the Government Officials. Therefore, we have no other option than to exercise our 

power under article 104 of the Constitution. In the instant matters, it is absolutely necessary 

to do so.  

 

115. Moreover, if we do not exercise the power, given by our beloved Constitution under 

article 104 in these matters, it would give a wrong message to the unscrupulous land/property 

grabbers and in such case this judgment would be used as a tool/device to grab other 

Government properties with the seal of the Court. Therefore, under compelling 

circumstances, we have exercised our power under article 104 of the Constitution in dealing 

with the appeals and the CPLA for doing complete justice. 

 

116. Finally, we appreciate Mr. Murad Raza, the learned Additional Attorney General, 

who with the leave of the Court, within a very short period has been able to assist the Court 

immensely by his elaborate arguments studying the abandoned property file meticulously. 

We also appreciate Mr. Nozrul Islam Chowdhury and Mr. A.M. Aminuddin, the learned 

Senior Advocates and Mr. Khair Azaz Maswood and Mr. Farooque Ahmed, the learned 

Advocates for the contending parties, who had tried their best for the interest of their 

respective clients and also to assist the Court. However, we do not find any merit in their 

submissions.  

 

117. Accordingly,-  

(1) Civil Appeal No.30 of 2017 and Civil Appeal No.31 of 2017 are dismissed. 

(2) The impugned judgment and decree dated 24.08.2015 of the High Court Division in 

Transfer Appeal No.08 of 2014 allowing the appeal, decreeing T.S. No.224 of 1997 and 

directing Waziuddin to handover vacant possession of the suit property in favour of Khadiza 

Islam, appellant of T.A. No.08 of 2014 within 60 days from the receipt of the judgment by 

setting aside the judgment and decree dated 18.08.2009 of the 1
st
 Court of Sub-ordinate 

Judge, Dhaka in T.S. No.224 of 1997 is set-aside and T.S. No.224 of 1997 is dismissed. 

(3) The judgment and decree passed by the High Court Division in First Appeal No.23 of 

1984 allowing the appeal and decreeing T.S. No.541 of 1982 of the Court of Sub-ordinate 

Judge, Dhaka by setting aside the judgment and decree of dismissal of T.S. No.541 of 1982 is 

hereby declared to be fraudulent, unlawful, and thus, set aside. 

(4) The execution proceeding arising out of the said decree is also declared illegal. The 

registered deed of transfer of the suit property being Deed No.4722 dated 30.11.1992 in 

favour of Md. Waziuddin through Court is hereby cancelled. 

(5) Khadiza Islam would not be entitled to get Khas possession from Md. Waziuddin and 

she would not be entitled to retain possession in the suit property, if there be any, by 

whatever means. 

(6) Government Khas Mohal Authority shall takeover physical possession of the suit 

propertypresently measuring more or less 12 khatas of land with structures thereon of 

Holding No.10, Purana Paltan, Dhaka, Plot No.1184, Khatian No.217, present- Mouza-

Ramna, Old Dag Nos.26, 27 and 28 vide statement of witnesses and plaint of Title Suit 

No.224 of 1997 (Khadiza Islam vs. Waziuddin and others), within 60 days from the date of 

receiving copy of this judgment from Md. Waziuddin/Khadiza Islam-Nirman Construction/ 

any person/ persons, in possession of the suit property in its present condition and retain its 

possession in accordance with law. 
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(7) Civil Appeal No.32 of 2017 and Civil Petition for Leave to Appeal No.4232 of 2018 

are disposed of in the light of the observations made in the body of the judgment and the 

above decision/directions. 

 

118. Send a copy of this judgment and order to the Inspector General of Registration and 

the concernedSub-Registrar for taking necessary steps relating to cancellation of Md. 

Waziuddin’s deed being No.4722 dated 30.11.1992. 

 

119. Also send a copy of this judgment to the Deputy Commissioner/Deputy Collector, 

Dhaka to take necessary action for taking over possession of the suit property,a Khas Mohal 

Property, as per our directions as above. 

 

120. Further, sent copies of this judgment to the Secretary, Ministry of Land, Dhaka for 

information. 

 

121. Send down the lower court records at once. 

 

122. The Abandoned Property Record submitted on our instruction be also returned to the 

concerned authority through the person who submitted the same before this court on 

receiving appropriate acknowledgement receipt.    

 


